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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR,S REPORT

To the members of SPML TNFMSTRUCTURE L|M|TED

Report on the audit of the financial statements

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of SPML lNFMsrRUcruRE LlMlrED (the ,compdnv,), whichcomprise the batance sheet as at 31 March 2022, tie statement of profit and loss (inctuding othercomprehensive income), the statement.of changeiln 
"qultv 

and the statement of cash ftows for the year

;:i,:,:i!|:'"il:,:jnj:,:i,:,|i|nff:i|;.:tenients, in-.i,irng u ',"iiv or tn" signiricant accountins

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the exptanations given to us, the aforesaidfinancial statements give the information required by the companies,2013 (.the Act,,)in the manner sorequired and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting standards prescribed undersection 133 of theAct read with the companies (lndian Accounting standard) Rute, 2015, as amended (,lndAS',) and the other accounting principtes generalty accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the companyas at 31 March 2022, and its [oss, total comprehensive [oss, changes in equity and its cash ftows for the yearended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements
specified under section 143(j0) of the Companies Act,
further described in the auditor's responsibitities for
report.

in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs)
2013. Our responsibitities under those Standards are
the audit of the financiat statements section of our

we are independent of the company in accordance with the code of Ethics issued by the lnstitute ofchartered Accountants of lndia (lcAl) together with the independent requirements that are retevant to ouraudit of the financial statements under the provisions of the companies Act, 2013 and the Rutes madethereunder, and we have futfitted our other ethicat responsibitities in accordance with these requirementsand the lCAl's Code of Ethics.

we believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis forour audit opinion on the financiat statements.

Information other than the Financial statements and Auditor,s Report Thereon

The Company's Board
information comprises

of Directors is responsibte for the preparation of other
the information inctuded in the board's report inctuding anr

other
report
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and sharehotder's information, but does not include the financiat statements and our auditor's report
thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conctusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibitity is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materiatty inconsistent with the financiat
statements or our knowtedge obtained during the course of our audit, or otherwise appears to be materiatty
misstated.

lf, based on the work we have performed, we conctude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements.

The Company's Board of Directors is responsibte for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Companies
Act, 2013 (the 'Act') with respect to the preparation of these financiat statements that give a true and fair
view of the financial position, financial performance inctuding other comprehensive income, cash flows and
changes in equity of the Company in accordance with Ind AS and the other accounting principtes generatty
accepted in India.

This responsibitity atso inctudes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds
and other irregutarities; selection and apptication of appropriate accounting poticies; making judgments
and estimates that are reasonabte and prudent; and design, imptementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectivety for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of
the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give
a true and fair view and are free from materiat misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsibte for assessing the Company's abitity to
continue as a going concern, disctosing, as appticabte, matters retated to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting untess management either intends to tiquidate the Company or cease
operations, or has no reatistic atternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors of the Company are responsibte for overseeing the company's financiat reporting
process.

Auditor's responsibility for the audit of the Financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonabte assurance about whether the financial statements as a whote are
free from materia[ misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
inctudes our opinion. Reasonabte assurance is a high tevet of assurance, but is not a guaq t an audit
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conducted in accordance with SAs witt atways detect a materiaI misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individuatty or in the aggregate, they coutd
reasonabty be expected to inftuence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financiat
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professionat judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We atso:

ldentify and assess the risks of materiaI misstatement of the financiat statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resutting from fraud is higher than for one resutting from error, as fraud may invotve
cottusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal controt.

Obtain an understanding of interna[ control retevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies Act, 2013, we are
atso responsibte for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internat financiat
controts system in ptace and the operating effectiveness of such controts.

Evatuate the appropriateness of accounting poticies used and the reasonabteness of accounting
estimates and retated disctosures made by management.

Conctude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a materia[ uncertainty exists retated to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's abitity to continue as a going concern. lf
we conctude that a materiat uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor,s
report to the retated disctosures in the financiat statements or, if such disctosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conctusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as
a going concern.

Evatuate the overat[ presentation, structure and content of the financiat statements, inctuding the
disctosures, and whether the financiat statements represent the undertying transactions and events in
a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiatity is the magnitude of misstatements in the financiat statements that, individuatty or in aggregate,
makes it probabte that the economic decisions of a reasonabty knowtedgeable user of the financial
statements may be inftuenced. We consider quantitative materiatity and quatitative factors in (i) ptanning
the scope of our audit work and in evatuating the resutts of our work; and (ii) to evatuate the effect of any
identified misstatements in the financiaI statements.
we communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the ptanned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, inctuding any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.
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We atso provide those charged with governance'with a statement that we have comptied with retevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them att retationships and other
matters that may reasonabty be thought to bear on our independence, and where appticabte, retated
safeguards.

Report on other legal and Regulatory requirements

1) As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that:

(a) we have sought and obtained all the information and exptanations which to the best of our
knowtedge and betief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

(b) in our opinion, proper books of account as required by taw have been kept by the Company so far
as it appears from our examination of those books:

(c) the batance sheet, the statement of profit and loss inctuding other comprehensive income , the
statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash ftows deatt with by this report are in
agreement with the books of account;

(d) in our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements compty with the Indian Accounting Standards
notified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (lndian Accounting Standards) Rutes,
2015, as amended:

(e) on the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on
31st March 2022 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disquatified as
on 3'1't March 2022 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act; and

(f) with respect to the adequacy of the internal financiat controts over the financiat reporting of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controts, refer our separate report in Annexure
"A". Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of
the company's internaI financiat controts over financia[ reporting.

(g) [n our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the exptanations given to us, the
company has paid remuneration to its directors during the year is in accordance with the provisions
of section 197 of the Act.

(h) With respect to the other matters to be inctuded in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rute 11
of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rutes, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information
and according to the exptanations given to us:

i. The Company has disctosed the impact of pending titigation on its financial position in its
financia[ statements.
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The Company did not have any long-term contracts inctuding derivative contracts for which
there were any materiat foreseeable tosses;

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

(a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowtedge and betief, other
than as disctosed in the notes to the financial statements, no funds have been advanced or
loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or
kind of funds) by the company to or in any other person or entity, inctuding foreign entity
("lntermediaries"), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that
the Intermediary shatt, whether, directty or indirectty tend or invest in other persons or
entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behatf of the company ("Uttimate
Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the [ike on behatf of the Uttimate
Beneficiaries;

(b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other
than as disctosed in the notes to the financial statements, no funds have been received by
the company from any person or entity, inctuding foreign entity ("Funding Parties"), with
the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the company shalt,
whether, directty or indirectty, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever by or on behatf of the Funding Party ("Uttimate Beneficiaries") or provide
any guarantee, security or the like on behatf of the Uttimate Beneficiaries ; and

(c) Based on our audit procedures that we have been considered reasonable and appropriate
in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to betieve that the
representations provided by the management under sub-ctause (a) and (b) above contain any
materiaI misstatement.

(d) The Company has not dectared any dividend during the year.

2) As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order,2020 (the'Order') issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in Annexure'B'to this Report, a
statement on the matters specified in para 3 and 4 of the said Order, to the extent appticabte.

For Maheshwari & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.: 31 1008E

Sateesh Patil
Partner
Membership No.: 227311
U Dl N : 22227 31 1 AJZUCK6043

Ptace: Bengaturu
Date: 27th May 2022
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Annexure ,,A,, to the Independent Auditor,s Report

(Referred to in paragrapll-1 (f) under 'Report on other te_gat-and regutatory requirements, section of ourreport to the Members of spML rNFMsrRiJcruRE fi,r,nrreo of even d;ie) 
- 

'

Report on the internal financial controls over financial reporting under clause (i) of sub - section 3 ofsection 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the A;i;t -

we have audited the internat financiatcontrots over financiat reporting of spML lNFRASrRUcruRE LlMlrED("the company") as at March 31, 202.2, in conjunciiori wlth our audit of the financiat statements of theCompany for the year ended on that date.

Management's responsibitity for internal financial controls

The board of directors of the company is responsibte for estabtishing and maintaining internal financiatcontrots based on the internal controt over financiat reporting criteria estabtished by the companyconsidering the essentiat components of internal conirot stated in tne Guidance Note on Audit of InternalFinancial controts over Financiat Reporting issued by the Institute of chartered Accountants of lndia('lcAl')' These responsibitities inctude the-disign, irli"r"ntation and maintenance of adequate internalfinanciat controls that were operating effectiie[y r&'ensuring the orderty and efficient conduct of itsbusiness' including adherence'to company's poticies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention anddetection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and compteteness of thelccounting records, and the timetypreparation of retiabte financiat information, as requileJ under the companies Act, 2013.

Auditors' responsibility

our responsibitity is to express an opinion on the internat financiat controts over financial reporting of thecompany based on our audit. we conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit ofInternal Financiat controts over Financiat Reporfing (ine "Guidance Note,,) issued by the Institute ofchartered Accountants of India and the standards o-n luoiilng prescribed- unoer section 143 (10) of thecompanies Act, 2013, to the extent appticabte to un irJii of iniernat flnanciitcontrots and, both issued bythe Institute of chartered Accountanis of India. Thosl sianoaros and the guidance note require that wecompty with ethical requirements and ptan and perform the audit to obta]n reasonabte assurance aboutwhether adequate internaI financiat controts over financiat reporting were estabtished and maintained andif such controts operated effectivety in art materiat respeitr.

our audit invotves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internalfinancial controls system ovei financiat reporting ino ttreir operating effectiveness. our audit of internalfinanciaI controts over financlat repoiiing inctude? obtaining an understanding of internaI financiat controtsover financial reporting, assessing the riik that a rut"riuiweakness exists, aird testing and evatuating thedesign and operating effectiveneis of internal control based on the urr"rr"d iirk. The procedures setecteddepend on the auditor's judgement, inctuding $re assesimlnt of the risks of materiat misstatement in thefinancial statements, whether due to fraud oi error.

we betieve that the audit evidence we haveobtained, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis forour audit opinion on the company's internal financial control system over'rininciat reporting.
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Meaning of internal financial controls over financial reporting

A company's internal financiat control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonabteassurance regarding the retiabitity of financiat reporting and the preparation of financial statements forexternal purposes in accordance with. generatty'accepied u..ornting principtes. A company]s internatfinancial control over fina.nciat reportin! inctudls thofe poticies and procedures that (i) pertain to themaintenance of records that, in reasonlbte detait, accuratety and fairty reflect the transactions anddispositions of the assets of the company,; (ii) provide reasonabte assurancethat transactions are recordedas necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generatty acceptedaccounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made onty inaccordance with authorisations of management and directors of the .orpuny; and (iii) provide reasonabteassurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, oi disposition of thecompany's assets that coutd have a material effect on the financiat statements.

Inherent Limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting

Because of the inherent timitations of internal financial controts over financiat reporting, including thepossibitity of cottusion or improper management of override of controts, materiat misstatements due toerror or fraud may occur and not be deteCted. Also, projections of any eyatuation of the internal financiatcontrols over financial reporting to future periods are su'blect to the risk that the internat financiat controlover financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree ofcompliance with the poticies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion and according to the info.rmation and exptanations given to us, the company has, in atlmateriat respects' an adequate internal financiat control system ovei financiat reporting uirJ such internatfinancial controts over-financiat reporting w.ere operating effectivety as at March 31,2022, based on theinternal control over financiat reporting criteria'estabti;hed oy th6 compiny considering the essentialcomponents of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financiat Controts overFinancial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of lndia.

For Maheshwari & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 311008E

Sateesh Patil
Partner
Membership No.227311
iJDIN : 2222731 1 AJZUCK6043

Ptace: Bengaluru
Date: 27th May 2022
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Annexure - B to the Independent Auditors, Report

Referred to in paragraph 2 under "Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements" Section of our
report to the members of sPML lNFMsrRUcruRE LlMlrED of even date.

Based on the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting a true and fair view on the financiat
statements of the Company and taking into consideration the information and exptanations given to us and
the books of account and other records examined by us in the normat course of audit, we report that:
(i) In respect of company's Property, Ptant and Equipment and Intangibte Assets:

a) A) The Company has maintained proper records showing futt particutars, inctuding quantitative
detaits and situation of Property, ptant and Equipment.

B) The Company has no intangibte assets. Accordingty, the provisions of clause 3(i)(a)(B) of the
Order are not appticabte.

b) The Property, Ptant and Equipment have been physicatty verified by the management during the
year and according to the information and exptanation given no material discrepancies were noticed
on such verification. In our opinion, the frequency of verification of the Property, Ptant and
Equipment is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets.

c) The Company does not hotd any immovable properties. Accordingty, the provisions of ctause 3(ii)(c)
of the Order are not appticable.

d) The Company has not revatued any of its Property, Plant and Equipment during the year.

e) No proceedings have been initiated during the year or are pending against the Company as at
March 31,2022 for hotding any Benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition)
Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) and rutes made thereunder.

(ii) a) The Company does not hotd any Inventory. Accordingty, the provisions of ctause 3(ii)(a) of the Order
are not appticabte.

b) According to the information and exptanations given to us, and the records examined by us,
the Company has not been sanctioned any working capitat timits aggregating to more than five
crores by banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets at any point
of time of the year. Hence reporting under paragraph 3(ii)(b) of the Order does not arise.

(iii) a) The Company has granted loan, secured or unsecured to companies, firms, Limited Liabitity
Partnerships (LLPs) or other parties covered in the register maintained under Section 189 of
the Act, and detaits for the same are as fottows:

\(1
,r'! It;
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A. Detaits of Loans or Advances and Guarantees or Security granted to subsidiaries, joint ventures
and associates

(Amount in Rs. '000)
Name of the
Concern

Nature of
Relationship

Nature of
transaction

Aggregate
amount during
the FY

Balance
outstanding at
the balance
sheet

Attahabad Waste
Processing
Company Ltd.

Subsidiary Loan 596.203 8,833.63

Doon Vattey
Waste
Management
Pvt. Ltd

Subsidiary Loan 62,636 1,777.33

Madurai
Municipat Waste
Processing
Company Pvt.
Ltd.

Companies in which
key Managerial
Persona[ or
retatives of KMP
have significant
inftuence

Loan 1.666.349 12,171.72

Mathura Nagar
Waste
processing Co.
Ltd

Subsidiary Loan 353.275 1,235.69

Sanmati
Infradevetopers
Pvt Ltd

Subsidiary Loan 26.869 8,312.57

B. Loans or Advances and Guarantees or Security to other parties:
(Amount in Rs. '000)

Name of the Concern Nature of
transaction

Aggregate amount
during the FY

Balance
outstanding at the
balance sheet

Pondicherry Port Ltd Loan 699.941 58,699.52

b) According to the information and exptanations given to us, and the records examined by us,
the investments made, guarantees provided, security and the terms and conditions of the grant
of atl loans and advances in the nature of loans and guarantees provided are prejudiciat to the
company's interest.

c) ln our opinion and according to information and exptanation given to us, in respect of loans
and advances in the nature of loans, the company has stiputated the terms and conditions as
on demand and interest free. Since, the company has not demanded the loans, the repayment
of principal and payment of interest is regutar;
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d) According to the information and exptanations given to us, and the records examined by us,
since the company has not demanded the loans during the year, there are no overdue amounts.

e) According to the information and exptanations given to us, and the records examined by us,
there is no [oan or advance in the nature of loan granted which has fatten due during the year,
has been renewed or extended or fresh loans granted to settte the overdues of existing toans
given to the same parties, Hence reporting under paragraph 3(iii)(e) of the Order does not
arise.

f) According to the in information and exptanations given to us, and the records examined by
us, the company has granted loans or advances in the nature of loans repayabte on demand:

Name of the
Concern

Nature of Relation Aggregate amount
of loan

% thereafter of to
the total loans
granted

Attahabad Waste
Processing Company
Ltd.

Subsidiary 8.833 .63
9.70

Doon Vattey Waste
Management Pvt.
Ltd

Subsidiary 1,777.33
1,95

Madurai MunicipaI
Waste Processing
Company Pvt. Ltd.

Companies in which key
Managerial Personnel or
retatives of KMP have
signification i nftuence

12,171.72

1 3.38

Mathura Nagar
Waste processing Co.
Ltd

Subsidiary 1,235.68
1 .36

Sanmati
Infradevelopers Pvt
Lrd

Subsidiary 8,312.52
9.13

Pondicherry Port Ltd Loan 58.699.52 64.48

According to the information and exptanations given to us, and the records examined by us, in
respect of loans, investments, guarantees, and security, the provisions of sections 185 and 186
of the Companies Act have been comptied with.

The Company has not accepted any deposits within the meaning of Sections 73 to 76 of the
Act and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rutes,2014 (as amended). Accordingty, the
provisions of ctause 3(v) of the Order are not appticabte.

(iv)

(v)

To the best of our knowtedge and betief,
maintenance of cost records under sub-section
Company's products/services. Accordingty, the
appticabte.

the CentraI Government has not specified
(1) of Section 148 of the Act, in respect of

provisions of ctause 3(vi) of the Order are not

(vi)
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(vii) According to the information and exptanations given to us, in respect of statutory dues:

a) The Company is generatty regutar in depositing undisputed statutory dues inctuding provident
fund, employees'state insurance, income-tax, sates-tax, service tax, Goods and Services tax,
duty of customs, duty of excise, vatue added tax, cess and other materia[ statutory dues, as
appticabte, with the appropriate authorities. There are no outstanding statutory dues as on the
last day of the financial year concerned for a period of more than six months from the date they
became payabte.

b) There are no statutory dues referred to in sub-ctause (a), which have not been deposited
on account of dispute.

viii) There were no transactions retating to previousty unrecorded income that have been
surrendered or disctosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income
Tax Act, 1961.

(ix) a) In our opinion and according to the information and exptanations given to us , the company
has not defautted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the payment of interest
thereon to any lender, Hence reporting under paragraph 3(ix)(a) of the Order does not arise.

b) In our opinion and according to the information and exptanations given to us, The Company
has not been dectared witfut defautter by any bank or financiaI institution or government or
any government authority.

c) In our opinion and according to the information and exptanations given to us ,the company has
apptied term loans for the purpose for which the loans were obtained

d) In our opinion and according to the information and exptanations given to us, the funds raised
on short term basis have not been utilized for long term purposes.

e) In our opinion and according to the information and exptanations given to us, the company has
not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obtigations of its
subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures.

f ) In our opinion and according to the information and exptanations given to us, the company has
not raised loans during the year on the ptedge of securities hetd in its subsidiaries, joint
ventures or associate companies.

(x) a) In our opinion and according to the information and exptanations given to us, the Company did
not raise any money by way of initial pubtic offer or further pubtic offer (inctuding debt
instruments) and hence, reporting under this paragraph 3(x)(a) of the order is not appticabte.

b) In our opinion and according to the information and exptanations given to us, the Company has
not made any preferential attotment or private ptacement of shares or convertibte debentures
(futty, partiatty or optionatty convertibte) during the year. Accordingty, paragraph 3 (x) (b) of
the Order is not appticabte.
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(xi) a) To the best of our knowtedge and according to the information and exptanations given to us,
no fraud by the Company or no material fraud on the Company by any person has been noticed
or reported during the year. Accordingty, paragraph 3 (xi) (a) of the Order is not appticabte.

b) No report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed in Form
ADT'4 as prescribed under rute 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rutes, 2014 with the
Central Government, during the year and up to the date of this report.

c) To the best of our knowtedge and according to the information and exptanations given to us,
no whistle-btower complaints, have been received by the Company during the year.

(xii) In our opinion and according to the information and exptanations given to us, the
Company is not a nidhi company. Accordingty, paragraph 3(xii) of the Order is not
appticabte.

(xiii) According to the information and exptanations given to us and based on our examination
of the records of the Company, transactions with the related parties are in comptiance
with sections 177 and 188 of the Act where appticabte and detaits of such transactions
have been disctosed in the financial statements as required by the appticabte Indian
accounting standards.

(xiv) In our opinion and according to the information and exptanations given to us, the
internal audit provisions are not appticabte to the Company. Accordingty, paragraph
3(xiv) of the Order is not appticabte.

(xv) According to the information and exptanations given to us and based on our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not entered into non-
cash transactions with its directors or persons connected with its directors. Hence
provisions of section 192 of Companies Act, 2013 are not appticabte to the Company.

(xvi) a) ln our opinion, the Company is not required to be registered under section 45-lA of the
Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. Hence, reporting under ctause 3(xvi)(a) and (b) of the
Order is not appticabte.

In our opinion, the company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing
Finance activities without a vatid Certificate of Registration (CoR) from the Reserve
Bank of India as per the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934;

In our opinion, the company is not a core investment company (as defined in the Core
lnvestment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions ,2016) and accordingty reporting under
ctause 3(xvi)(c) of the Order is not appticabte.

In our opinion, the Group has no ClC, Hence reporting under this clause 3(xvi)(d) witt not
arise.

b)

c)

d)



MAH ESHWARI & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants

(xvii) The Company has not incurred cash tosses during
and the immediatety preceding financial year.

the financiat year covered by our audit

(xviii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company during the year.

(xix) On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of reatisation of financial
assets and payment of financial tiabitities, other information accompanying the financial
statements and our knowtedge of the Board of Directors and Management ptans and based
on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our
attention, which causes us to betieve that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of
the audit report indicating that Company is not capabte of meeting its tiabitities existing at
the date of batance sheet as and when they fatt due within a period of one year from the
batance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future
viabitity of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the
date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that att
tiabitities fatting due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, witt get
discharged by the Company as and when they fatt due.

(xx) Since the provisions of Corporate SociaI Responsibitity (CSR) of Companies Act, 2013 are not
appticabte to the company, the reporting under ctause 3(xx)(a) and 3(xx)(b) of the Order is
not appticabte for the year.

(xxi) The financiaI statements are not consotidated financial statements, accordingly, reporting
under paragraph 3(xxi) of the Order is not appticabte.

For Maheshwari & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No. : 31 10088

t

Sateesh Patil
Partner
Membership No.: 227311
U Dl N : 22227 31 1 AJZUCK6043

P[ace: Bengaturu
Date: 27th May 7022
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SPi{L INFMSTRUCTURE LlttlTED
Balance Sheet as at 3lst rilarch 2022

Summary of Significant accounting poticies

Contigencies & Commitments

As per our Report of even date,

For Arlaheshwarl & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg.No. 311008E

Sateesh Patil
Partner

Membership No. 22731 1

Place: Bengaluru

Date:27th tAay2022

2

29&30

As at
31st lilarch 2022

Other non-cunent financial Asets

- Other Current Financial Asets
Current Income tax Receivable (Net)

- Borrowings
- Current maturities of long term liabitities
- Trade payables

Total outstanding dues of micro enterprise and
sma[[ enterprise
Total outstanding dues of other than micro
enterprise and small enterprise

- Other current financia[ liabilities

6,135.31

98,830.-27

15.fl)
46,981.28

7,059.89

1,55,487.30

4,500.00

1 5.00

45,607.tX

1,51,961.86

u,438.96
2,986.53

29,488.54

5,953.89
20,480.05

2,09.93
1,400.95

9,625.95

29,518.11

4,435.67

41,608.97

1,43,347.97

7,433.U
1,21,285.57

1,09,136,24
1,456.47

18,895.07

43.18

5,530.10

0.50

61,53't.62
1,456.47

2,931.17

43.17

1,060.17

0.13

(Amount in Rs'000)

The notes are an integral part of these financial statement

Raje')k(andoi
Directo

DIN : 0743.4686

Place: Bengaluru

Date:27th May2022

For and on behalf of the board



SPi,tL INFMSTRUCTURE LIM|TED
statement of Profit and Loss for the year'bnded 31st lrtarch 2022

Summary of Significant accounting policies

As per our Report of even date.

For ilaheshwarl & fusociates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg.No. 311008E

Sateesh Patil
Partner

lilembership No.227311

Ptace: Bengaturu

Date : 27th tlay 2022

For and on behalf of the board

DIN : 07434686

Place: Bengaturu

Date:27th t[ay2022

For the year ended
31st lrtarch 2022

For the year ended
3lst tlarch 2021

Income

Revenue from Operations
Income

Total Income

Expenses

of lriaterial Consumed and Direct Expenses
benefits expense

Cost

Depreciation and Amortisation expenses
Expenses

Total Expenses

before exceptional items and tax from contlnuing

Items
Profit(loss) before tax from continulng operations

Expenses

titx
tax for earlier year

Deferred tax
Income Tax Expense

Profit for the year from Continulng Operations

Comprehenslve Income (OCl)
other comprehenslve income not to be reclasslfled to proflt or toss In

perlods:

gains on defined benefit plans
Income Tax effect

Comprehenslve Income for the year

'otal Comprehenslve Income for the year

Earnings per share - Basic and Dituted (Nominat value Re.1 per share)

132,m15
2,303.39

1,35,090.54

1,14,017.72

4,569.48

1,sA.gg
1,124,09

. 76,418.36

16,772.29

3,476.99

8,866.19

1,096.25

16,853.79

563.01

171.31

(1,374.56

168.03

10.09

5,790.06

11,504,66

(61,972.851 ,11,970.29

1.55

(Amount in Rs'000)

The notes are an integral part of these financiai statement

("r

\\l
\-\

Director
DIN:02671640



SPAIL INFRASTRUCTURE LITAITED

St tement of C.sh flows for the year ended 31st ,ilarch 2022

(Amount in Rs

Profit before tax from Continuing Operations

to reconclle proflt before tax to net cash flows:
Depreclation and Amortisation FJgenses
Provision/Liabltity no longer required written back
Finance Expenses

Interest Income on loans
Profit on sale of Investments

Interest Income on financiat assets
lmpairment Co6t on financial Assets

Sundry Balance Written off
Re-Measurement gains on defined benefit ptans

(Decrease)/lncrease In Other Curent Financial assets
(Decrease)/tncrease in Trade Receivable
(Decrease)/lncrease in Other Current assets
(Decrease )/lncrease in Loans & Advances
(Decrease )/lncrease in Trade payabtes

(Decrease )/lncrease in Other Current Financial tiabilities
(Decrease )/lncrease in Other Current liabilities
(Decrease )/lncrease in Provisions

Income tax paid / (Refund)
cash flows from opentlng actMfles

Purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment
Fair \ralue change / Purchase of Investments
Interest Income on financial assets
cash flows used In Investlng actMties

Proceeds from Borrowings

Repayment of Borrowings
Finance Expense (Net)

Net crsh flows froml(used In) flnancing.cfivltles

Net increase In cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year

and cash equlvalents at the end of the year

(62,614.O91

1,124.09

16.26

1,564.99

(1,9s0.00)

(72.311

68,620.00

17,472,83

1,096.25

I 15.20

8,866.19
(551.22l.

120,762.581

13,561.91

28.45
1188.61

21,128.92
.14,125.95

15,947.65

0.01

4,$9.93
55.82

139,66

(41,280.$'t
14,025.96

71.r4

1,585.59

1,M.95

ln from Fli|anclng actlvltles for the year en led 31st lillrch 2022 (Amount in Rs

lst Aprll 2021 Proceeds Repayment Falr Value
Chanres

3tst lbrch
2021

rorroungs . Non Lurrent (Refer Note-l4) 43,673.24 2,31 5.1 5 14,/|85.58 31,502.81
ryr ruwlru! . lutt gilt l[elef Notg-ro, 61,531.62 1,05.354.81 1E,929.14 1,47,957.30

1,05,20,f.86 1.O7.669.96 33,414.72 1,79,460.10

ln from Flnanclng actMtles for the vear en, led 3lst ltarch 2021

lst Aprll 2020 Proceeds Repayment
F.lr Value
Chamx

3tst llarch
2021

Borrowings - Non Current (Refer Note.l4) 52,221.49 4,6n.@ 11 ,781.88 45.129.70
rBs - Lurrenr (KeTer Note-16) 13,218.19 56,531.99 8.218.56 61,531.62

65,439.68 61,222.08 20,000.44 1,06,661.32

As per our Report of erren date.

For lhhBhwarl I Assoclat6
Chartered Accountants

Partner

l,iembership No. 22731 I

Place: Bengaluru

Date ':27th I'tlay 2022

For and on behatf of the board

"ffihM
hltelh-Kfndol

Director
DIN : 07434686 DIN : 02671640



in Rs

Particulars As at
31st llarch 2022

As at
31st lthrch 2021

Equlty 3hares of Re 1 each lssued,
rubscribed and fully pald

lalance at the beginning of the reporting period
lhanges in equity share capital during the year

7,433.-U 7,433.U

lalance at the end of the reporting period 7,433.04 7,433.04

SPi4L INFMSTRUCTURE LIA,IITED

Statement of Changes in Equlty for the year ended llst Atarch 2022

A) Equity Share Capltal

B) Other Equlty

For the year ended 3

For the ended 3lst riarch 202

The notes.are an integral part of these financiat statement

As per our Report of even date.

For llaheshwarl & Associates
Chartered Accountants

Sateesh Patll
Partner
I'iembership No. 22731 1

Place: Bengaluru

Date i27thl'{,ay2022

For and on behalf of the board

st rilarch 2022 fAmoilnf in Pr

Partlculars Retalned earnlngs Securlty Premlum
Capital Reserves
on Amalgamation

Other
comprehenslve

lncome
Total

Ealance as at 1st Aprll 2021
Profit foi the year

Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax
Mjustments

l'otal comprehenslve Income

(4,06,439.31)

(61,973._861

(61,973.86)

5,88,762.-66 65.06 870.01

r.oo

1.00

1,83,259.42

(61,973.86)

1.00

(61,972,e51
zvzz (4,68,413.17' 5,88,762.66 65.06 871.O2 1,21,285.56

Amolrnt in R<

Particulars Retained earnlngs Securlty Premium Capltal Reserves
on Amalgamatlon

Other
comprehensive

lncome
Total

Ealance as at lst April 2020
Profit for the year
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax
Mrustments

Iotal comprehensive Income

(4,17,943,97

11,504.-66

11.504.66

),d6, /62.66 o5.u0 5(X.3E

365,63

365.63

1,71,399.1 3

11,50/..66

365.63

11.870.29
as ar Jtst r[arch zozl (4,06,439.31 5,88.762.66 65.06 870.01 1,83.258.42

ffi N*Direc\
DIN: 02*686



SPAIL INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED

Notes to ffnanclal statements as at 3 1 st tiarch 2OZ2

1 Company background

SPML lnfrastructure Ltd., being the vertical leader of SPML Infra Ltd. for the infrastructure projects as its 100% subsidiary,
spearheads, devetops & manages infrastructure projects tike Ports,SEZs, Integrated Industriat Townships,Urban
Infrastructure,Automated Car Parking Solutions, Tott Link roads among other infrastructure projlts.

2 Slgnlflcant accounting pollcies

2.O1 Basis of preparation and presentatlon
(a) Statement of compliance
These financial statements are prepared in accordance Mth Indian Accounting Standards (lnd A5) prescribed under section 133 of
the Act read with Rule 3 of the Companies (lndian Accounting Standards) Rutes, 2015 and relevant amendment rutes issued there
after.

Accounting poticies have been consistently apptied except where a newly issued accounting standard is initiatty adopted or a revision
to an existing accounting standard requires a change in the accounting poticy hitherto in usl.

(b) Basis of measurement
The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost convention and on an accrual basis, except for the following
material items that have been measured at fair vatue as required by retevant Ind AS:

i. Certain financiat assets and tiabitities measured at fair value (refer accounting policy on financial
instruments) and

ii. Defined benefit and other tong-term emptoyee benefits.

(c) Going Concern Concept and i.ts impact on the company
Considering the unpresidented gtobal pendamic of covid 19 and the stow down of business druing the 23rd March 2020 to 17th lvtay
2020, the management had made the assessment of going concern abitity of the company. Based on the management assessment on
its business impact during the tock down, which was common across the industry, it had no specific imp-act to the compan/s
operation as such. Accordingty the financiat statements have been prepared on going concem basis.

(d) Use of estimates and Judgement
The preparation of financiat statements in conformity with lnd AS requires management to make judgments, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of accounting poticies and the reported amounts of assets, tiabilities, income and expenses.
Actual resutts may differ from these estimates. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on a periodic basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any future periods affected.

(e) Estimation of uncertainties relating to the ilobal health pandemic from COVTD-I9 (COV|D-19):
The Company has considered the possibl,e effects that may resutt from the pandemic retating to COVID - 19 on the carrying amounts
of receivables, payables and investments in subsidiaries and associates. In devetoping the assumptions retating to the possi-bte future
uncertainties in the globat economic conditions because of this pandemic, the Company, as at.the date of approval of these financial
statements has used internat and externat sources of information. The Company has performed sensitivity anatpis on the
assumptions used and based on current estimates expects the carrying amount of these assets will be recovered. The impact of
covlD -19 on the Company's financial statements may differ from that estimated as at the date of approval of these financial
statements.

(f) Current versus non-current classiflcation
The Company presents assets and tiabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current ctassification. An asset is treated as
curent when it is:
- ExPected to be reatised or intended to be sotd or consumed in normal operating cycte, :

- Hetd primarity for the purpose of trading,
- Expected to be reatised within twetve months after the reporting period, or
- Cash or cash equivatent unless restricted from being
reporting period.
Att other assets are ctassified as non-current.

ffi
to settte a tiabitity for at teast twelve months after the



SPA,TL INFMSTRUCTURE LIMITED

Notes to financlal statements as at 31st March 2022
A tiabitity is current when:
- lt is expected to be settted in normal operating cycle,
- lt is hetd primarity for the purpose of trading,
- lt is due to be settted within twetve months after the reporting period, or
'There is no unconditionat right to defer the setttem6nt of the tiabitity for at least twetve months after the reporting period.
The Company ctassifies alt other liabitities as non-current

Deferred tax assets and tiabitities are classified as non-current assets and tiabilities.

The operating cycte is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivatents.
The Company has identified twetve months as its operating cycte.

2.02 Property, plant and equipment.
Under the previous GMP (lndian GAAP), property, ptant and equipment were carried in the balance sheet at their carrying value
being the cost of acquisition or construction less accumulated depreciation.

The cost of property, plant and equipment inctudes freight, duties, taxes and other incidentat expenses retating to the acquisition
and installation of the respective assets. The present value of the expected cost for the decommissioning of an asset after its use is
inctuded in the cost of the respective asset if the recognition criteria for a provision are met. Borrowing costs directly attributabte to
acquisition or construction of those assets which necessarity take a substantiat period of time to get ready for their intended use are
capitatized.

Advance paid towards the acquisition of assets outstanding at each balance sheet are shown under capitat advances. The cost of
property, ptant and equipment not ready for their intended use before such date, are disclosed as capital wo* in progress.

Depreciatlon methods, estimated useful lives and residual value:

The method of depreciation adopted and estimated useful tife of fixed assets is enumerated below:

Asset Description Method Usefut life adopted

Useful tife as per
Schedute ll to the
Companies Act,

2013
Office equipments

Vehicte

End user devices, such as, desktops, laptops, etc.

sLlt

sLtt

SLM

5 years

8 yean

3 years

5 years

8 yean

3 years

The management has identified usefut tife of the assets (tangibte), based on the tife as prescribed in Schedute ll to the Companies
{ct,2013. Further the residual value is is estimated to be 5% of cost of asset.

lmpairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses at each batance sheet date whether there is any indication that an asset or a group of assets comprising a
cash-generating unit may be impaired. lf any such indication exists, or when annual impairmeht testing for an asset is required, the
Company estimates the asset's recoverable amount. An asset's recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's or cash-generating
unit's (CGU) fair vatue less costs of disposat and its vatue in use. Recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, untess
the asset does not generate cash inftows that are targety independent of those from other'assets or groups of assets. When the
carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its
recoverable amount.

In assessing vatue in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining
fair vatue less costs of disposat, recent market transactions are taken into account. lf no such transactions can be identified, an
appropriate valuation model is used. These calcutations are corroborated by vatuation multiples, quoted share prices for pubticty
traded companies or other available fair value indicators.
The Company bases its impairment catcutation on detaited budgets and forecast catculations, which are prepared

separately for each of the CGUs to which the individuat assets are attocated. These budgets and forecast
calculations generatty cover a period of five years. For longer periods, a long-term growth rate is calcutated and

apptied to project future cash flows after the fifth year. To estimate cash ftow projections beyond periods covered by the most
recent budgets/forecasts, the Group extrapotates cash flow projections in the budget using a growth rate for

years, unless an increasing rate can be justified. ln any case, this growth rate tong-term average$
M

rate for 
" 
t.tryries, or country or countnes in which the entity the asset is



SPA,TL INFMSTRUCTURE LIMITED
Notes to financlal statements as at 3lst lrtarch 2022

For assets excluding goodwitt, an assessment is made at each reporting date to determine whether there is an
indication that previously recognised impairment losses no tonger exist or have decreased. lf such indication exists, the Group
estimates the asset's or cGU's recoverable amount. A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a
change in the assumptions used to determine the asset's recoverable amount since the tast impairment loss was recognised. The
reversal is timited so that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its recoverabte amount, nor exceed the carrying amount
that woutd have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. Such
reversal is recognised in the statement of profit or toss unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case, the reversal
is treated as a revaluation increase.

2.04 Revenue recognition
Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probabte that the economic benefits witt ftow to the company and the revenue can bereliably measured' regardless of when the payment is being made. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivabte, taking into account contractuatty defined terms of payment, net of taxes or duties coltected on behatf of thegovemment' Further, The company uses significant judgments while determining the transaction price altocated to performance
obligations.

The Company uses the percentage'of'completion method in accounting for its fixed-price contracts. Use of the percentage-of-comptetion method requires the company to estimate the efforts or costs expended to date as a proportion of the totat efforts orcosts to be expended' Efforts or costs expended have been used to measure progress towards comptetion as there is a directrelationship between input and productivity.

Further, the company uses significant judgments white determining the transaction price allocated to performance obligations usingthe expected cost plus margin approach.

Pr'ovisions for estimated losses, if any, on uncompteted contracts are recorded in the period in which such tosses become probabte
based on the expected contract estimates at the reporting date.

other Income - The specific recognition criteria described below must also be met before revenue is recognised.

Interest income is recorded. using the effective interest rate (ElR). EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cashpayments or receipts over the expected life of the financiat instrument or a shorter period, ,n h"r" 
"ppropriate, 

to the gross carryingamount of the financial asset or to the amortised cost of a financiat tiabitity. when catculating the effective interest rate, the groupestimates the expected cash flows by considering atl the contractual terms of the financial instrument (for exampte, prepayment,
extension, catl and similar options) but does not consider the expected credit losses. Interest income is included in finance income inthe statement of profit and loss.

Dlvldends
Revenue is recognised when the company's right to receive the payment is estabtished, which is generatty when sharehotders
approve the dividend.

2.05 Leases

The company evaluates if an arrangement qualifiesto be a lease as per the requirements of Ind AS 116. ldentification of a leaserequires significant judgment. The company uses significant iuogement in assessing ttre tease terir ti".,ro]"rl"iffi;; renewals)
and the appticable discount rate.

The company determines the lease term as the non-cancettabte period of a lease, together with both periods covered by an optionto extend the lease if the company is reasonabty certain to exercise that option; and periods covered by an option to terminate thelease if the company is reasonabty certain not to exercise that option. In assessing whether the company is reasonably certain toexercise an option to extend a lease, or not to exercise an option to terminate a tease, it considers atl retevant facts andcircumstances that create an economic incentive for the company to exercise the option to extend the lease, or not to exercise theoption to terminate the lease. The company revises the [ease term if there is a change in the non-cance[able period of a lease.

The discount rate is generatty based on the incremental borrowing rate specific to the lease being evatuated or for a portfotio ofleases with simitar characteristics.

2.06 Financlallnstruments
A financiat instrument is any contract that gr

E {uu**'b
\?
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another entity.
instrument of



SPA,TL INFMSTRUCTURE LIA,IITED

Notes toffnancial statements as at 31st March2022
A Financlal Assets

a) Classification
The company classifies its financiat assets in the fotlowing measurement categories:

' those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through other comprehensive income, or through
profit or [oss), and

- those measured at amortised cost.
The classification depends on the entity's business model for managing the financiat assets and.the contractual terms of the cash
flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and tosses witt either be recorded in profit or loss or other comprehensive income. For
investments in debt instruments, this witt depend on the business modet in which the investment is hetd. For investments in eguity
instruments, this witt depend on whether the company has made an irrevocable election at the time of initial recognition to account
for the equity investment at fair value through other comprehensive income.

b) Inltial recognltion and measurement
All financial assets are recognised initiatty at fair value plus, in the case of financiat assets not recorded at fair vatue through profit
or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. purchases or sales of financiat assets that
require delivery of assets within a time frame established by regulation or convention in the market place (regutar way trades) are
recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.

c) Subseguent measurement
Financial assets carried at amortised cost: A financial assets is measured at amortised cost if it is hetd within a business modet whose
objective is to hold asset in order to collect contractual cash ftows and the contractual cash terms of the financial asset give rise on
specified dates to cash ftows that are solety payments of principat and interest on the principal amount outstanding. lnterest income
from these financial assets is accounted in profit or tess using the effective interest rate method. lmpairment losses, forex gain / toss
and gain / loss on derecognition of financial asset in this category is recognised in profit or [oss.
Financial assets at fair value throuqh other comprehensive income (FVTocl): A financial asset is measured at FVTocl, if it is hetd
withing a business modet whose objective is achieved by both from cotlection of contractua[ cash flows and selling the financial
assets, where the assets' cash flows represent sotely payments of principal and interest. Further equity instruments where the
company has made an irrevocabte election based on its business model, to ctassify as instruments measured at FVTocl, are
measured subsequently at fair value through other comprehensive income.

Debt instruments ' Movements in the carrying amount are taken through other comprehensive income (ocl), except for the
recognition of impairment gains or losses, interest revenue and foreign exchange gains and losses which are recognised in profit and
loss' When the financiat asset is derecognised, thecumulative gain or toss previousty recognised in oCl is rectassified from eguity to
profit or loss and recognised. Interest income from these financial assets is inctuded in other income using the effective interest rate
method.

Equity instruments ' Movements in the carrying amount are taken to OCI and there is no subsequent rectassification of fair value
gains and tosses to profit or toss. Dividend from such investments are recognised in profit or loss.

Financiat assets at fair value throuqh profit or loss (FVTPL): A financiat asset which is not classified in any of the above categories
are subsequently fair vatued through profit or toss. Att gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss.

d) lmpalrment of financlal assets
The company assesses on a forward looking basis the expected credit losses associated with its assets carried at amortised cost and
FVTOcl debt instruments. The impair:ment methodology apptied depends on whether there has been a significant increase in credit
risk. Note 43 detaits how the company determines whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk.

For trade receivables, the company appties the simplified approach specified by Ind AS 109 Financiat Instruments, which requires

ffi
expected tifetime losses to be recognised from initial of the receivabtes.



SPA,IL INFMSTRUCTURE LIA,TITED

Notes to financial statements as at 31st March 2022
e) Derecognltion of flnancial assets
A financial asset is primarity derecognised when:
- The rights to receive cash ftows from the asset have expired, or
- The company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obtigation to pay the received cash
flows in full without material detay to a third party under a 'pass-through' arrangement; and either (a) the company has transfeged
substantially att the risk and rewards of the asset, or (b) the company has neither transferred nor retained substantially a1 the risk
and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it
evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risk and rewards of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained
substantiatly alt of the risls and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the company continues to recognise the
transferred asset to the extent of the company's continuing invotvement. ln that case, the company also recognises an associated
liability' The transferred asset and the associated tiabitity are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obtigations that the
company has retained.

B Flnanclal llabilities
a) Classiflcatlon
The company ctassifies its financial liabitities in the foltowing measurement categories:
' those to be measured subsequently at fair value through profit or loss, and
- those measured at amortised cost.

The ctassification depends on the entity's business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual terms of the cash
flows.

b) Initial recognition and measurement
The company recognises financial liabitities when it becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Att financial

liabitities are recognized at fair vatue on initiat recognition. Transaction costs that are directty attributabte to the issue of financiat

tiabitities, that are not at fair value through profit or [oss, are reduced from the fair vatue on initiat recognition. Transaction costs

that are directty attributabte to the issue of financial tiabitities at fair value through profit or loss are expensed in profit or loss.

c) Subsequent measurement
The measurement of financiat liabitities depends on their ctassification, as described betow:

Amortised cost: After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised co't using
the Effective interest rate (ElR) method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the tiabitities are derecognised as wel
as through the EIR amortisation process.

Amortised cost is catculated by taking into accounLany discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integrat part
of the ElR. The EIR amortisation is inctuded as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss.

Financial liabitities at fair value throuch orofit or toss: Financiat liabitities at fair vatue through profit or loss include financial
tiabilities held for trading and financial tiabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair vatue itrrougn profit or toss. Financiat
liabitities are ctassified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. This category atso
includes derivative financiat instruments entered into by the company that are not designated as hedging instruments ii n"og"
retationships as defined by Ind A5 109. Separated gmbedded derivatives are also ctassified as held for trading untess they are
designated as effective hddging instruments.

Gains or losses on tiabitities hetd for trading are recognised in the profit or loss.

Financial tiabitities designated upon initiat recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated as such at the initiat date of
recognition, and only if the criterla in tnd A5 109 are satisfied. For liabitities designated as FVTpL, fair vatue gains/ losses
attributabte to changes in own credit risk are recognized in OCl. These gains/ toss are not subsequently transferred to Statement of
Profit and Loss. However, the company may transfer the cumulative gain or toss within equity. Atl other changes in fair value of such
tiabitity are recognised in the statement of profit or [oss. The company has not designated any financiat tiabitity as at fair value
through profit and [oss.

"ffimM



SPML INFMSTRUCTURE LIAAITED

Notes to financial statements as at 31st ilarch 2022
Derecognitlon of financial Liabitities
A financiat tiabitity is derecognised when the obligation under the tiabitity is discharged or cancelted or expires. when an existing
financiat liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantialty different terms, or the terms of an existing liabitity
are substantiatty modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the originat liabitity and the
recognition of a new tiabitity. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit or toss.

C Financial guarantee contracts
The fair value of financiat guarantees is determined as the present vatue of the difference in net cash flows between the contractualpayments under the debt instrument and the payments that woutd be required without the guarantee or the estimated amount that
would be payabte to a third party for assuming the obtigations.
(l) as Guarantor
Financial guarantee contracts are recognised as a financial liabitity at the time the guarantee is issued. The tiability is initiatty
measured at fair value and subsequently at the higher of the amount determined in accordance with tnd AS 109 and the amount
initiatty recognised [ess cumurative amortisation, whdre appropriate.

where guarantees in relation to loans or other payables of associates are provided for no compensation, the fair values are
accounted for as contributions and recognised as part of the cost of the investment.
(ii) as Beneflciary
Financial guarantee contracts are recognised as a financial asset at the time the guarantee is taken. The asset is initial,ty measured
at fair value and subsequentty amortised over the guarantee period.

where guarantees in retation to loans or other payables are provided by group companies for no compensation, the fair vatues are
accounted for as contributions and recognised as part of equity.

D Offsettlng flnancial Instruments
Financial assets and tiabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the batance sheet where there is a tegatty enforceable
right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settte on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the tiabitity
simuttaneousty. The tegally enforceabte right must not be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the normal course
of business and in the event of default, insotvenry or bankruptcy of the comapany or the counterparty.

2.O7 Borrowlngs

Borrowings are initiatly recognised at fair value, net. of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently measured at
amortised cost' Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption ambunt is recognised in profit or
loss over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest method. Fees paid on the establishment of toan facitities are
recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is probable that some or a[ of the facitity witt be drawn down. In this
case, the fee is deferred untit the draw down occurs. To the extent there is no evidence that it is probabte that some or alt of the
facility witt be drawn down, the fee is capitatised as a prepayment for tiquidity seMces and amortised over the period of the facitity
to which it relates.

Borrowings are removed from the batance sheet when the obtigation specified in the contract is discharged, canceued or expired.
The difference between the carrying amount of a financial tiabitity that has been extinguished or transferred to another party and
the consideration paid, including any non-cash assets transferred or tiabitities assumed, is recognised in profit or loss as other
gains/(tosses).

Borowings are classified as current tiabitities unless the company has an unconditionat right to defer setttement of the tiability for at
teast 12 months after the reporting period. where there is a breach of a materiat provision of a tong-term loan arrangement on or
before the end of the reporting period with the effect that the tiability becomes payabte on <temand on the reporting date, the
entity does not classify the liability as curent, if the tender agreed, after the reporting period and before the approval of the
financial statements for issue, not to demand payment as a consequence of the breach.

2.08 Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs directly attributabte to the acguisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes a substantial
period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of the asset. Att other borrowing co6ts are
expensed in the period in which they occur. Borowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an in connection
with the borrowing of funds.
borrowing costs.

Borrowing Sgsl-a[go includes(4<)
o
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SPML INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED
Notes to financial statements as at 3lst llarch 2022
2.09 Taxes

Current income tax
Curent income tax assets and tiabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authorities' The tax rates and tax taws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantivety enacted, at the
reporting date in the countries where the company operates and generates taxabte income.

'current income tax retating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other
comprehensive income or in equity). current tax items are recognised in corretation to the underlying transaction either in oCl or
directty in equity' Management periodicatty evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situatiohs in which
applicable tax regutations are subject to interpretation and estabtishes provisions where appropriate.

Minimum alternate tax ('A4AT') paid in a year is charged to the statement of profit and loss as current tax. The company recognizes
lrlAT credit available as an asset only to the extent that there is convincing evidence that the company wilt pay norma[ income tax
during the specified period, i.e., the period for which A4AT credit is allowed to be carried fonnrard. ln the year in which the company
recognises rtMT credit as an asset in accordance with the Guidance Note on Accounting for Credit Avaitabte in respect of Minimum
Alternative Tax under the lncome tax Act, 1961, the said asset is created by way of credit to the statement of profit and toss and
shown as '/\'IAT Credit Entitlement'. The company reviews the 'i,tAT credit entittement' asset at each reporting date and writes down
the asset to the extent the company does not have convincing evidence that it witt pay normal tax during the specified period.
Deferred tax asset is defined in Ind AS 12 to include the carry fonrard of unused tax credits. IMT credits are in the form of unused
tax credits that are carried forward by the company for a specified period of time. Accordingly, 

^iAT 
credit Entittement is grouped

with Deferred Tax Aset (net) in the Batance Sheet.

Deferred tax
Deferred tax is provided using the liabitity method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and tiabitities and their
carrying amounts for financiat reporting purposes at the reporting date.

'Defered tax tiabitities are recognised for alt taxabte temporary differences, except:
- when the deferred tax tiability arises from the initial recognition of goodwilt or an asset or tiabitity in a transaction that is not a

business combination and, at the time of the transaition, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxabte profit or toss;
' in respect of taxable temporary differences Essociated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and interests in joint

ventures, when the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary
differences witl not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for att deductibte temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and any unused
tax losses' Deferred tax assets are rdcognised to the extent that it is probabte that taxabte profit witt be avaitable against which the
deductibte temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax tosses can be utilised, except:

- when the deferred tax asset retating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of an asset or
liabitity in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit
nor taxable profit or [oss;

' in respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and interests in joint
ventures, deferred tax assets are recognised onty to the extent that it is probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the
foreseeable future and taxable profit witt be availabte against which the temporary differences can be utitised.

The carrying amount of defered tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probabte that sufficient taxabte profit witt be avaitabte to altow att or part of the deferred tax asset to be utitised. Unrecognised
deferred tax assets are re'assessed at each reportingdate and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future
taxable profits witl atlow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and tiabitities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to appty in the year when the asset is reatised or
the tiabitity is settled, based on tax rates (and tax taws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.#\
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SPA,TL INFRASTRUCTURE LIAAITED

Notes to financial statements as at 31st tiarch 2OD2
Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside piofit or toss is recognised outside profit or toss (either in other comprehensiveincome or in equity)' Deferred tax items are recognised in corretation to the underlying transaction either in ocl or directty inequity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax tiabitities are offset if a legatty enforceabte right exists to set off current tax assets againstcurrent tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxabte entity and the same taxation authority.

Tax benefits acquired as part of a business combination, but not satisfying the criteria for separate recognition at that date, arerecognised subsequently if new information about facts and circumstances change. Acquired deferred tax benefits recognised withinthe measurement period reduce goodwitt retated to that acquisition if they result from new information obtained about facts andcircumstances existing at the acquisition date. lf the carrying amount of goodwitt is zero, any remaining deferred tax benefits arerecognised in ocl/ capital reserve depending on the principle exptained for bargain purchase gains. Att other acquired tax benefits
realised are recognised in profit or loss.

2.10 Provisions and contingent liabilities
Provisions are recognised when the company has a present obtigation (tegal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probablethat an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be reguired to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can bemade of the amount of the obtigation.

lf the effect of the time value of money is materiat, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, whenappropriate' the risks specific to the tiabitity' when discounting is used, the increase in tne irovislon due to the passage of time isrecognised as a finance cost.

Contingent llabllities recognlsed in a business combination
A contingent tiability recognised in a business combination is initiatty measured at its fair value. subsequentty, it is measured at the
higher of the amount that woutd be recognised in accordance with the reguirements for provisions above or the amount initially
recognised less, when appropriate, cumulative amortisation recognised in accordance with the requirements for revenue recognition.

2.1 I Cash and cash equivalents
cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at bank and on hand and short-term deposits with an originat maturityof three months or tess, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in vatue.

Cash flow statement
cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby net profit/ (loss) before tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions ofa non'cash nature and an! deferrats or accruats of pait or future cash receipts or payments. The cash ftows from op"r",ing, investingand financing activities of the company are segregated. .

2.12 cash divrdend and non-cash distribution to equity horders of ihe parent
The company recognises a tiabitity to make cash or non'cash distributions to equity hotders of the parent when the distribution is
authorised and the distribution is no longer at the discretion of the company. As per the corporate taws in India, a distribution is
authorised when it is approved by the shareholders. A corresponding amount is recognised direcgy in equity.

Non-cash distributions are measured at the fair vatue of the assets to be distributed with fair value re-measurement recognised
directty in equity.

upon distribution of non'cash assets, any difference between the carrying amount of the liabitity and the carrying amount of the
assets distributed is recognised in the statement of profit and [oss..

2.13 Earningpershare
The basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit/ (toss) attributabte to owne/s of the company for the year by theweighted average number of equity shares outstandinS during reporting period.

The number of shares used in computing dituted eamings/ (toss) per share comprises the weighted average shares considered for
f::1*1t: ::T:"::' Git Ti share and atso the weighted.average number of equity shares whichgoggfifrqrye.Qeen issued on theof att ditutive potentiat equity shares.

pitutive potentiat equity shares are deemed converted as of the beginning of the reporting
laterdate. In computing dituted earnings per share, on$ potrentiat equity srrares ttrat are oi

issued at a

per share or increase loss per share are included.
earnings



SPTTL INFMSTRUCTURE LIA,TITED

Notes to flnancial statements as at 31st March 2022

2.14 Segment reporting
Based on the "management approach" as defined in lnd AS 108 - Operating Segments, the Chief Operating Decision Aitaker evaluates

the comPany performance and allocates resources based on an anatysis of various performance indicators by business segments.

2. I 5 Recent Accounting pronouncements
The amendments to standards that are issued, but not yet effective, up to the date of issuance of the financial statements are
disclosed below. The Company intends to adopt these standards, if appticabte, when they become effective

Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") notifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards under Companies
(fndianAccountingStandards) Rules as issued from time to time.On lrlarch 23, 2022, t CAamended the Companies (lndian Accounting
Standards) Amendment Rules, 2022, as betow.

tnd A516 - Property Plant and eguipment'The amendment clarifies that excess of net sate proceed of items produced over the cost
of testing,if any, shall not be recognised in the profit or toss but deducted from the directty attributable costsconsidered as part of
cost of an item of property, plant,and equipment.The effective date for adoption of this amendment is annuat periods beginning on
or after Aprit 1 ' 2022, The Company has evaluated the amendment and there is no impact on its financiat statements.

Ind AS 37 - Provisions ,ContingentL iabitities and Contingent Asets - The amendment specifies that the 'cost of futfilting' a contract
comprises the 'costs that relate directty to the contiact'. Costs that relate directly to a contract can either be incremental costs of
futfitling that contract (examples would be direct tabour, materials) or an allocation of other costs that relate directly to fulfitting
contracts (an exampte woutd be the attocation of the depreciation charge for an item of property, plant and equipment used in
futfitting the contract).The effective date for adoption of this amendment is annual periods beginning on or aftei Aptia I,ZOZZ,
atthough early adoption is permitted.The Company has evaluated the amendment and the impact is not expected to be material.

#q
f (rro,*^tu*u)9M



SPA,IL INFRASTRUCTURE LIIAITED

Notes to financial statements as at 3ist ltarchZO2Z

3 PROPERW, PLANT AND EqUIPMENT

in Rs'000)

Particulars Offfce
equipment

Furniture &
Fixture

End user
devices, such
as, desktops,
laptops, etc.

Vehicles Total

GROSS BLOCK

AsatApril 1,2O2O 3.80 8.52 9,O73.37 9,085.69
Additions

Disposats

Exchange Difference

108.80 26.70 135.50

As at lrlarch 31, ZO21 112.60 26.70 8.52 9,O73.37 9,221.19
Additions

Disposals

Exchange Difference

144.18 83.00

27.69
227.18

27.69

As at lrlarch 31,2022 112.60 26.70 152.70 9,128.69 9,420.69

ACCUA{ULATED DEPRECIfi
AsatApril 1,2020 3.17 5.69 1,056.19 1.065.0s
Depreciation Charge for the year
lmpairment
Disposals

Exchange Difference

13.25 1.78 1,081._22 1,096._25

Asatlilarch 31,2021 16.42 1.78 5.69 2,137.41 2,161.3O
Charge for the year
lmpairment
Disposats

Erchange Difference

20.67 2.54 26.23 1,074.65

-

1,124.09

As at lrlarch 31, 2022 37.O9 4.31 31.92 3,212.06 3,285.38

{ET BLOCK

As at lrlarch 31, 2021 '96.1 8 24.92 2.83 6,935.96 7,059.99
As at lrlarch 31, ZO22 75.51 22.39 120.78 5,916.62 6, I 35.31

dx\
S {"gx;,'-.",-unu) !*#
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at amortised cost unless stated otherwise

(A) lnvestment In Unquoted Equlty Shares (Fully pald up)

1,12,51 'w (lrlarch 31, 2021'. 1 ,12,51 ,000) Equity shares of Re 1 /- Each, futty paid up of
Allahabad Waste Processing Co Limtied .
53,34,000 (March 31, 2OZ1: 53,34,000) Equity Shares of Re 1 /_ Each, fully paid up of
lvlathura Nagar Waste processing Co Limtied .

!f,000 (iUarcn 31,2021:,59,000) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- Each, fulty paid up of Doon
Valley Waste Management private Limtied .
15,OO,OOO (March 31, 2021 : 5,@,000) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- Each, fulty paid up of
Sanamti Infradevtopers private Limited .

36,000 (lrlarch 31 , 2021: 51,OOO) Equity Shares of Re 1 /- Each, fulty paid up of SpMLIL -
A ,IRUTHA Contructions private Limited
4,85,500 (lvlarch 31, 2021: 4,85,500) Equity Shares of Rs. ioi - Each, futly paid up of
Dethi Waste Management Llmtied

Falr value through the statement of other comprehensive Income

20,(M (l'tarch 31,2021:, ZO,W4\ Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- Each, fuily paid up of Chahet
Infrastructure Limited (lnctudes the beneficial interest in 4 shares)

43,55,400 (March 31, 2021:43,55,M ) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- Each, fully paid up of
liladurai Municipal Waste processing Co private Llmtied

Less: Provision for impairement of financiat assets..

at Falr value through the statement of profit and loss

(B) Investment In Redeemable preference Shares (Fully paid up)

91,00,000 (March 31, 2021: 91,00,000) preference shares of Re 1/- Each, futty paid up of
Mathura Nagar Waste processing Company Limtied
7 

'18,48,a@ 
(lviarch 31, 2021: 7,18,48,000) preference shares of Re 1 /- Each, fulty paid

up of Attahabad Waste processing Company Limtied
3,68,14,@0 (March 31, 2021t 3,68,14,000) preference shares of Re 1/- Each, futty paid
up of Doon Vatley Waste lvlanagement private Limtied

Otherc

1,78,51,000 (lviarch 31, 2021; 1,78,51 ,No preference shares of Re 1 /- Each, futty paid
up of lvtadurai Municipal Waste processing Company private Limited

Less: Provision for impairement of financiat assets..

1,000.00

. 36.00

1,55,436.30

51.00

1,55,436.30

7,55,487.3O

9,1q).00

70,370.12

26,203.48

42,47.54

9,100.00

70,370.12

26,203.48

42,47.54

SPIAL INFRASTRUCTURE LIA,IITED

Notes to ffnancial statements as at 3ist liarchZO22

F]NANCIAL ASSETS

'These investments are carried at deemed cost at the transition date based on the fair value and hence the corresponding vatue shown.against each of the investments are Nit.

" The company has made an investment in the equity shares of lvlathuranagar waste Processing Gompany Limited, A[ahabad waste
Processing company Limited and A,ladurai Municipal waste Processing Company private Limited. The are in thebusiness of (i) cottection, segregation, and processing of sotid waste liij to Dispose of Operate,
Maintain Garbage Dumping centers (iv) Land Fitting of Remnants. The project has been the necessary
obtigations committed by the respective Nagar Nigams as per the Concession agreement has
2015-16 the companies have fited for the arbitration petition and the suits at the civit courts for
of current status of arbitration/Court proceedings and tegal <$ftfrn obtained from the lawyers, the

during the
assesment

98,830.27

98,830.27

3,15,169.26

1,55,497.30

1,55,47.30

3,14,194.26

for impairement of these investment at appropriate values.
the provision



SP ,tL INFRASTRUCTURE L|MITED
Notes to flnanclat statements as at 3lst lfurch 2022

5 LOANS

II particulars
I

I

lUnsecured considered good unless stated
Loans and advances others

Less: Provision for impairement of loan

Advance paid for share warrents .
(10% advance of Rs. 9,000 Thousands warrants of Rs.10/- each convertible into shares as Iper Warrant Subscription Agreement dated 16.11.20071 

|
I

in Rs'000)

A5 at
31st lilarch 2022

As at
3lstl4arch 2021

58,699,52

58,699.52
57,999.58

57,99,9.58

4,500.00

4,500.00

Partlculars
In Rs

As at
31st ilarch 2022

As at
31st lrtarch 2021

Unsecured considered good unless stated
5ecurity deposit receivabte

15.00 15.00

15.00 15.00

Loans and receivables are non'derivative financiat assets which generate a fixed or variable interest income for the Group. The carrylngvatue may be affected by changes in the credit risk of the countlrparties.

' During the year 2oo8'09, the company had paid an amount of Rs. 4,500 Thousands (Rupees Forty Five Lakhs onty) To sanmatiInfradevelopers Private Limited (slDPL) as 10% advance towards warant subscrrption Money as per warrant subscription Agreementdated 16'11'0Tentered among SPML Infrastructure Limited, om Metals InfraproJects t-td a sanmati Infradevetopers tut Ltd (slDpL). Dueto non execution of proposbd project and investors setilement agreement, the said warrants agreement has been cancelled and advancepald towards the share warrant has been repiad by Sanmati rnrraievefopel pvt Ltd (slDpL)

6 OTHER NON.CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS

Mffi
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P!rtlculars A6.t
31st A||rch 2022

As rt
unsuR @nrcrco gG untes sbted

CmrldeEd good

Ctrsidercd doubtful
84,438.96 2,099.93

Tot l 8.1,.138.96 2.099

SPAIL INFRASTRUCIURE L|I|]TED
Notes to lln.ncLl st temenB !s .t Stst lbrch 2022

7 IRADE RECEMABLES

Ther ls an a|rnt of Rs' 82'339,03 thouends (PY ' Rs. Nit) ls de to Add Energy l'lanagernt cmpany Prihte Llmlted, In which the directon of the company and their reladws are digtots /,rembeE.

Trade recelnbles, excpt receiwbles on account of clalms of awareded In arbltrauon ln fa\€ur of company are non interest bearlng and are gemn[y d terms of 30 . 90 &ys,

CASH AND BANI( EALANCES

cash at banks eams Interest at fledng rates basd on daity bank deposlt rates. thm.tem depodts are
made fs \arylng periods of bet$€en m day and thre nmths, dependrng q the immediate cash
rcqulrcmnts of Ub Cmpany, and eam intircst at the respecth€ short.tem deposit rates.

9 LOANS

PertlculaF As rt
3lst llarch 2022

. Asrt
Slst rtlrrch 2021

Unsecu€d oonsidered god untess stated
Lons to related party '
Less: Pro\rldon for lmpalrcmnt of ldn ..

32,330.88
17-:tlr| tr

3i,67E,E1
2? i4' *

Tot l 9,625.95

Lens and reeinbles arc nm-derinti\€ finarElal assts which generate a fired or variable inteiest
Incom fd the Grwp. The errylng El€ may be aff<ted by changes in the credit rlsk of the
ruterparfres.

' Loan and adnms due fm dnpanies In which companys diKtor(s) is / are dirfttor(s) / member(s)

" conddering these companles are under litigation and therc are no operadng acdviti$ caried out by
them as on date' slrce thet€ are no operadng cash flou/s and accumulated loss in these cdDanies,
tln toan giwn by the @npany is constdered as doubtfut r*eh6ble and affidlngly pwlsion fof
lmpalrernent of toan has been made durlng the )rear,

Tnde rtrenables ag€ing $hedute fd the !€ar ended as m March 31, 2022 and l,^arch 31 , 2O2t:

As*
llst narch 2021

Pertlcuhr As at
Slst t arch 2022

As rt
3lst rrbrch 2O2l

Allahabad Waste rrlanagemnt Procesing Co Ltd
Doon Valtey Wast€ ,ranagement At, Ltd
lhdtral l,tunfcipal Waste Prcesslng Co ht Ltd
Mathura N.gar Wast€ Prc. Co. Ltd
ianmad Infade\€loperc A^ Ltd

s: Prwislon for impaircment of loan

8,E33.63

1,m3t
12,171.72

1,235.68

E,312.52

E,743.53

1,711.4
11,624.33

882.41

E,714.11
32,33O.66

32,330.8E
31,678.81
?7,O1t eA

Tot l 9,625.95

"ffimM



SP,tL INFMSTRUCTURE Lti,ilTED
Notes to financial statements as at 31st lrtarch 2022

10 OTHER CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS

' During the Prior year the company a
through merger order dated 31st January 2018. The transferor company was in the business of (i)
Coltection, Segregation, and Processing of Solid Waste (ii) to Dispose of Municipat Dispose (iii) Renovates,
operate, Maintain Garbage Dumping Centers (iv) Land Fitting of Remnanis. rhe projeit nas oeen
dispensed by the company on account of non futfitment of necessary obtigations committed by the
Jamshedpur Notified Area Committe as per the Concession agreement. Therefore during 2015-16 the
transferor company have fited for the arbitration petition and accordingty arbitration awareded in favour
of company. The case was infavour of the company even at the civit courts. presently the company has
fited the execution petition with the appropriate court and awaiting for the decisslon from them.
Accordingty the expenses incurred on the project has been shown under the head claims recievabte.

Break up of financial assets

(Amount

11 OTHERCURRENTASSETS

(Amount in Rs'000)

Particulars As at
31st lrtarch 2022

As at
31st lrtarch 2021

Unsecured considered good untess stated
Advance paid to staff
Arbitration Ctaims receivabte "

111.12

29,377.42
140.69

29,377.42

Total 29,498.54 29,519.11

in Rs

Particulars As at
31st lrtarch 2022

As at
31st lrtarch 2021

Investments

Loans

Other non-current financiat Assets
Trade Receivabtes

Cash and cash equivatents
Other Current Financial Assets

98,830.27

15.00

u,439.96
2,986.53

29,499.54

1,55,487.30

14,125.95

15.00

2,099.93

1,400.95

29,518.11

Iotal financial assets 2,15,759.3O. 2,02,647.24

Particulars As at
3lst llarch 2022

As at
3lst lilarch 2021

Unsecured considered good unless stated
Unbitted Revenue

Advance to Vendors

Prepaid Expenses

Balance receivabte from Government Authorities

20,169.45

310.60

18,762.15

20,289.89

433.43

2,123.50

Total 20,480.05 41,608.97

hM



SP,IAL INFRASTRUCTURE LIAAITED

Notes to ffnrnslel st tements rs rt 3ist rilrrch 2022

12 SHARECAPTTAL

(b) Rlghtr, preferences.nd r6trlctlon3 rttached to egulty shares
Equity Shares: The company has one class of equity shares having paid-up vatue of Re.1 per share. Each shareholder ls eligibte for one voteper share hetd' The company dectares and pays dividends in Indian Rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directo6 is subject to
the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General lrteeting, except in case of interim dividend. tn the event of liquldation, the
equity shareholden are eligibte to receive the remaining assets of the company after distribution of all preferential amounts. The
distrlbution will be in proportion to the number of Equity shares hetd be the sharehotder.

Sharcs

Inctuding 1 042 equity shares
The share held by holding company (SP/r{L tnfra Limited) has been ptedged in favour of the SBICAp Trustee/S4A Lende* for securtng the due
repayment of the Debts as restructure under the SPML s4A Scheme as approved by the oveEeeing committee (Governed under RBI) with
the super majority of the lender bank.

lncluding beneficial interst in 1(X2 equity shares

(e) The company has not allotted any futty paid up equity shares by way of bonus shares nor has bought back any cldss of equity shares
during the period of five years immediatety preceding the batance sheet date nor has issued shares for consideration other than cash.

(f) There are no unpald calls from director & officers of the company

(g) There are no buy back of shares during the year by the company;

(h) Disclosure of sharehotding of promoters:

Partlculars As .t 3lst r*.rch 2022
(Amount in Rs

As.t 3lsfrilrrch 2O2l
Number Anount (Rsl Number Amount (Rs)

Authorlsed
Equity shares of Re.1 /. each
Preference Equity shares of Rs. i /- each

lssued. iubscrlbcd & pald-uo

:quity shares of Re. 1/- each, futty paid

4,50,00,0q)

30.50.m0
45,000.00
3.050-oo

2,93,00,000.
30.50.000

29,300.00

3.050.m
4,80,50,0(x) 48,050.@ 3,23,50,0q) 32,350.00

74,33,042 7,433.U 7433,A2 7,433.U

71,33,O42 7,433,U 74,33,O42 7,4t3.O4

(.) Recor|cllLtlon of number of shares

Partlcularc
Equlty Shares

(Amount in Rs

EculW Shares
As .t 3lst rriarch 2022 As !t 31st ril.rch 2021

Number Rs Number Rs
ouEranorng at tne Degtnning of the year 74,33,U2 7,433.U 74,33,U2 7,433.U

nursl rs5ugg qunng me year

nrares rcugnr DacK ounng tne year

tne year 74,33,U2 7,433.U 74,r3,U2 7.433.U

ncld and oi

Neme of Shareholder end Reladonshlp wlth the company
As rt 313t ril.rch 2022 As.t 3lst ri.rch 2021

No. of Shares
held Amount No. of Shares

held
Arnount

:quEy )nares

7.433.U

Dctails of sharcs hcld by shrreholders more thrn 5% of thc sharcs ln thc

{rme of Shareholder
A3 rt 3lst rrhrch 2022 As.t 3lstrilrrch 2021

No' of Shares 
I x or xo|d|ng No. ofSheres

held
% of Holdlng

EquEy >neres

;PML lnfra Limited | 74,33,U2 | 100.0m 74,33,M2 | 100.001

Name of Promoterc
As at 3lst riarch 2022 As at 3lst riarch 2021

No. of shares 96of total
shales

% Change No. of shar6 96of total.
sha16

% Change

inteBt in 1M2
74,33,U2 1(x).00i5 0.00s 74,33,U2 100.001 0.00s

dxq
i ("r,',=,",rr^u) Ib#

Including equlty shares

V



Partlcul.rs As at
llst i,larch 2022

As at

lcrpttat Re6erve on Amalgmatlon

I Opening batance

| (+) Addltions

I G) Deductions

lTotal

Securlty Premlum
Openlng batance
(+) Additlcns

G) Deductions
Totat

Retalned Earnlngs
Openlng batance
(r) Net Profit/(Net Lo6s) For the curr$t year

fotat

65.06 65.06

65.06 55.06

5,8,762.66 5,E8,762.66

5,88,762.66 5,8E,762.66

(4,05,569.30,

/61.972.85'
(4,17,439.59.

11.E70.29

11,67,512.1511 (,t,05,569.!0'

1,27,245,57 1,83.25a.O

SPML INFRASTRUCTURE LIIIITED
Note3 to flnanclal statements .s at ! I st l{arch 2022

13 OTHEREQUTW

Nature and purpose of oths ressvs:

Crplt l Resorves on Anllgmafion: The excess of liabilides
accounted as epltal r*rves.

o\r'er the assets cr amalgamatlon has been

socurltles prenlum res.rve: Saurltles premlum reserve ls used to record the premium recelved m issue ofshares by the comPany. The reserye can be utlllsed In ac€ordance wlth tl|e prcvlslon of sec 52(2) of companlesAct, 2013.

Retalned EarnlnS3: Retarned Eamrngs comprrse of the companys accumurated undrstrrfuted eamrngs /(tosses)' Thk Reserve rePresents the cumulatlve proflts of urf i*np"nv and effects of remeasurement ofdeflned benefit obllgations, This Reserve can be utllised in accordanie with the pro,vlsions .r tn. lo*panre,Act,2013.

BORROWINCS

- Loan received from related parltG
12% p.a.)

PROVTSTONS

are repayable after l0 yers from Ol.i2.2oi8 durlng the ysr lnter$t has not been charyed. (py -

'Loan received from retated party repayabte on demand and Interest at the rate of 1?,[ pa (py . @ 12% pa)

:: 
LTI recelved from rerated parite are repayabre on demand and Intenet free. However In the previous yearthe Interest at the rate of 12% pa was pald.

CURRENT AIATURITTES OF LONG TER,M LIABILITIES

Partlcuhrs As at
Slst llrrch 2o?t

As .t
3 I st l{rrch 2o2 I

s€CUrAd

Frcm Bank.
Less: Dlsclosed under current maturlties of tong term borrowings
(Refer note iZ)

Unsecured

Frcm related partls..

2,858.41

1.11j6-17

.r,503.78

1.4]56-17
1,&1.95

30,057.68

.323,U7

$,582.75

Tot l 31,159.63 13,630.07

PartlcuLrs of loan and Se€urlty glven No of
Inrtallments

Partlculars As rt
t14 Ar".h tnrt

As at

Provlslon for employc€ bcnefits (Rcfer not. 39)
cratuity

70.03 14.58

Totil 70.03 14.58

BORROWINGS

Partlculrrs As rt
11't A*d1 a6r,

lAmdrnt|n Rs

As rt
3lst r4.rch 2r

unsecured
Frcm other corporates who are retated pardes

Repayable on Demand wltl| Interest.
Repayable on Demand without Intergt -

r2,258.55
96,E77.69

50,839.53

1O,692.@

Totrl 1,O9,136.21 61,5t1.62

ffihM Partlculars As at
31st llrrch 2022

As rt
3lst lhrch 2021

:urrent |taturltles of loan obllgatlql 1,456.47 1,456.47

Total 1,156.17 1,156.17



Partlculars As at
31st ilarch 2022

(Amount In Rs uu

As at
3lstrihrch 2021

Trade Payable6 l
Totat outstanding dues of mlcro and smau enterprls6.

Total outstandlng dues of other than mlcro and smatt enterprlses 18,895.07 2,931.17

Total 18,895.07 2,931.17

SPI,IL INFRASTRUCTURE LIA.TITED

Notes to flnanclal statements as at 3lst A{arch 2022

18 TRADE PAYABLES

' There are no reported Micro' Small and tr{edium Enterprises as defined ln the Mlcro, Smatl and /vledlum Enterprlses Devetopment Act, 2006 to whom the Company owes dues.

Terms and condltlons of the above flnanclal liabillties:
- Trade payables are non-lnterest bearlng and are normatty setited on 6o-day terms
- Other pa)rables are non.tnterest bearlng and have an average term of six mbnths
. Interest payable is normauy settled quarterly throughout the ftnancial year
- For terms and condifions with related parties, refer to Note 40
For exptanatlons on the Company's credlt rlsk management processes, refer to Note.42

OTHER CURRENT FINANCIAL LIABIL]TIES

(Amount In Rs

Partlculars As at
?lct Ar".h tntt

As at
Slsf lLr.h ,o?l

nterest accrued but not due 43.18 43,17

Total 43.18 43 17

Break up of flnanclal llabllltles carrled at amortlsed cost

ln Rs

Partlculars As at
31st ilarch 2022

As at
31st ilarch 2021

torrowlngs

frade Pa)abtes

Nher current flnanciat tiabltity

1,42,052.33

18,895.07

43.18

1,06,618.15

2,931,17

43.17
Total I,60,990.58 1.O9.592.49

20 OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIE5

Partlculars As at
3lst t{arch 2022

(Amount ln xs tru
As at

3lstrilarch 2021

ialades and other employee benefit payabte
;tatutory Dues payabte (lncluding cST and TDS)

1,219.91

4,310.19
257.10

803.07

Total 5.530.10 1,060.17

PROV|StOl{S

19

21

Partlculars As at 3lst ritarch 2022
Outstandlng for followlng perlods from due dat€ of Davment

Les3 than 1 year 1 -2 y€ars 2-3 years Alore than 3
y€ar3

Total

,il, 18,895.07 t8,895.07
2.931.17 2,931.17

,rv, ulspureo uues -ume6

fotal Trade Payable t8.895.07 18,895.07
2,931.17 2.931.17

In Rs

Partlculars As at
1l<t Alrr.h to,

As at
llGl I...h tnti

Provlslon for employ€e beneflts (Refer note 39)
Gratulty 0.50 0.13

Total 0.50 o.13

ffihM
##a
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SPA,IL INFMSTRUCTURE LIMITED
Notes to ffnancial statements for the year endlng 31st ilarch 2022

22 REVENUE FROIA OPEMTION

23

(Amount in Rs'000)

(Amount in Rs'000)

24 COST OF AIATERJAL CONSUMED AND DIRECT EXPENSES

25 EIT,TPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE

26 DEPRECIATION & ATiA,IORTISATION EXPENSES

Particulars For the year ended
31st ilarch 2022

For the year ended
31st A{arch 2021

Sale of SeMces
-Consultancy Charges
-Contract Revenue

17,O79.2O

1,15,697.95
24,230.n
18,762.15

Total 1,32,777.15 42,ggz.g2

OTHER INCOIAE

in Rs

Particulars For the year ended
31st ilarch 2022

For the year ended
31st lrtarch 2021

Liabitity no longer required written back
Interest Income on loans
Profit on sate of Fixed Assets .

Profit on sale of lnvestement
Interest on Income Tax Refund

16.26

72.31

1,950.00

2U.82

115.20

551.22

20,762.59

116.40
fotal 2,303.39 21,545.40

Particulars For the year ended
31st lilarch 2022

For the year ended
31st lrtarch 2021

Contract Service Direct Expenses:

Purchases of Consumabtes

Subcontractor Expenses

Site Office Expenses

67,502.25

44,542.83

1,972.64

740.24

15,869.17

162.87
Total 1,14,017.72 16,772.28

Particulars For the year ended
31st lrtarch 2022

For the year ended
31st lrtarch 2021

Salaries & Wages

Emptoyees Gratuity (Refer Note No 39)
Staff Medicat lnsurance
Staff Welfare expenses

3,084.53

57.16

294.U
1,132.95

3,026.94

50.24

399.81

Total 4,569.48 3,476.99

Particulars For the year ended
31st lrtarch 2022

For the year ended
31st llarch 2021

Depreciation on Tartgibte assets 1,124.09 1,096.25

Total 1,124.09 1,096.25

27 FINANCECOSTS

w
6f
(,s

182.52

467.67

216.@



SPML INFRASTRUCTURE TIMITED

Notes to financial statements for the year ending 3lst lriarch 2022

28 OTHER EXPENSES

' Exctusive of GST

rNcoME TAX ASSETS (NET)

The following table provides the details of income tax assets and tiabilities as at 31 lrtarch 2022:

(Amount in Rs'000)

ii) The gross movement in the currebt tax asseU ( Liability) for the years ended 31 lrtarch ZOZZlsas foltows:

29

i)

Particulars For the year ended
31st lrtarch 2022

For the year ended
31stliarch 2021

Advertisement Expenses

Fees "

Expenses

& Professional Charges

Paid

Etectricity charges
Printing & Stationery

expenses (Refer Note 38)

& Maintenance - office

lRepair & lv{aintenance - Vehicte

lSecurity Charges

Traveling & Conveyance

lmpairment Cost on financial Assets
Rates & Taxes

Misc Expenses

Bad Advances and Debts Writteh off

23.40

125.00

146.77

309.92

1,014.44

100.00

242.64

61.27

2,847.@
247.10

527.50

s61.68

257.19

68,620.00 
l

156.1s 
I

1,103.83 
|

74.47 |

24.47

75.00

1 58.69

271.51

489.97

1 55.39

354.84

148.19

508.84

152.54

271.03 
)

13,561.91 |

I

22.20 
|

630.75 |

28.45l|
Total 76,418,36 1 6,853.79

to Auditors (Amount in Rs

Particulars For the year ended
31st lrtarch 2022

For the year ended
3 1 st lriarch 2021

As Auditors*
- Audit fees
- For Tax Audit fees

75.00

50.00
75.00

Total 125.00 75.00

Particulars As at
31st lrtarch 2022

As at
31st fitarch 2021

lncome Tax Assets

Current Income Tax Liabilities
Net Balance

6,684.95

731.U
5,182.98

747.31

5,953.91 4,435.67

Particulars For the year ended
31st lrtarch 2022

For the year ended
31st lrtarch 2021

Net current income tax asset at the beginning
lncome Tax paid(Net of Refund)
Current Income tax expense
Income Tax paid for earlier year
lncome tax on other comprehensive income
Net current income taxasset at the end /fr

4,435.67
2,252.56

s63.01

171.31

5,750.56

(1,136.77)

168.03

u<q\'o:on
5,953.*1 / \.tAdgs.ez
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SPTAL INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED
Notes to financial statements for the year ending 3ist itarch 2022

iii) The tax expenses recognised in statement of profit and loss for the year ended 31 lrtarch 2o22lsas foltows:

(Amount in Rs'0@)

Particulars For the year ended
31st |{arch 2022

For the year ended
31st }iarch 2021

IncomeTaxexpense in the stateffi
Comprises:

Current income taxes
Deferred income taxes
lncome tax expenses (net)

734.32

(1,374.56)
178.12

5,7n.06
(640.241 5,969.19

iv) A reconciliation of the income tax provision to the amount computed by applying the statutory income tax rate to
(Amount in'000)

Particulars As at
31st |larch, 2022

As at
31st ilarch, 2021

lProfit before income tax

fEffect of expenses not attowed for tax purposes

lEffect 
of expense atlowed for tax purposes

lCapitat Gain

lCarried Fonvard Loss

Adjusted Taxabte profit
Appticabte income tax rate
Computed expected tax expense
Income tax for earlier year
Deferred tax charged to profit and loss

!$9qr" tax expense charges to the statement of profit and loss ]

(62,614.091

68,186.33

(1,022.-03',)

(2,313.20)

2,237.01

25.'t7%

563.01 
]

171.311
I

(1,374.2211

I

(63e.eo)l

17,472.93

(5,865. 1 5)

(1s.e0)

(10,924.161

667.62

25.17%

168.03 l

I

10.0e 
I

5,790.06 |

5,963.1g I

v) DEFFERED TAX

Particulars As at
3lst lrtarch 2022

As at
31st lrtarch 2021

luererreo Income tax liability

lriming difference on tangibte and intangibte assets depreciation and
lamortisation

Deferred Income tax asset
Timing difference on investments in securities*"
On carry fonrard business losses
Provision for Gratuity
Provision for Compensated absenses

Total deferred tax liabilities/ (assets) (net)

122,93

122.93

47,104.21
47,086.-46

17.75

1,804.42

1,8U.42
47,411.48
47,096.46

321.20

3.82

46,981.28 45,607.06

'The Company has not recognised the deferred tax asset arising on timing differace on account of tax toss pertaining
to Capitat Asset amounting to Rs. 12,737.55 (PY - Rs. 13,139.51), considering the concept of prudence and vertua[
certainity of profits as on date.
** Considering the concept of prudence and uncertainity of timing difference in vatue of investment in equity Shares
ofsubsidiary, Associates &, others, the deferred tax asset urorniing to Rs. 27,760.g1 (py - 2s,552.72, his not been

ffiM

recognised.
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SPAiL INFMSTRUCTURE LIMITED

Notes to financial statements for the year ending 31st lrtarch 2022

30 CONTINGENTLIABILITIES

(Amount in Rs'(X)0)

Particulars As at
31st lrtarch 2022

As at
31st lrtarch 2021

lClaims against Companies not acknowledged as debt

lCtaims towards tiquidated damages not acknowledged as debts by

Ithe Company Against the above, debts of the tike amounts ar€
withhetd by the customers. However, the Company expects no
material tiabitity to accrue on account of these ctaims

Disputed Statutory Demands

Performance bank guarantees given to various authorities

Capltal and Other Commitments:
Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capitat account and not provided for: as at 31st March 2022 - Rs. 925.80
(PY - Rs. 2,075.611

Earnlng Per Share
Basic EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to equity holders of the parent by the weighted
average number of Equity shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted EPS amounts are calcutated by dividing the profit attributable to equity holders of the parent (after adjusting for interest on
the convertible preference shares) by the weighted average number of Equity shares outstanding during the year plus the weighted
average number of Equity shares that woutd be issued on conversion of alt the dilutive potential Equity shares into Equity shares.

The foltowing reflects the income and share data used in the basic and dituted EPS computations:

in Rs'000)

Particulars For the year ended
31st lvtarch 2022

For the year ended
31st i{arch 2021

Net profit avaitable for Equity Shareholders (61,973.86" 11.504.66
Weighted Average number of Equity shares 74,33,U2 74,33,O42
Basic and Dituted Earnings Per Share (8.34) 1.55

33 Signiflcant accountlng Judgements, estimates and assumptlons
The preparation of the financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and tiabitities, and the accompanying disclosures, and the disctosure of contingent
tiabitities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates coutd result in outcomes that require a materiat adjustment to the
carrying amount of assets or liabitities affected in future.periods.

Judgements: In the process of apptying the company'-s accounting policies, management has made the fottowing judgements, which
have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements:

Estimates and assumptions: The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the
reporting date, that have a significant riik of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and tiabitities within the
next financial year, are described below. The company based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the
financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future devetopments, however, may change due to
market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the the company. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions
when they occur.

m
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SPA{L INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED

Notes to financial statements for the year ending 3lst lrtarch 2022
lmpairment of non'financial assets: lmpairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or cash generating unit exceeds its
recoverable amount, which is the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and its vatue in use. The fair vatue less costs of disposat
calculation is based on availabte data from binding sales transactions, conducted at arm,s length, for similar assets or observabte
market prices less incremental costs for disposing of the asset. The value in use calculation is based on a DCF modet. The cash ftows
are derived from the budget for the next five years and do not include restructuring activities that the company is not yet committed
to or significant future investments that witt enhance the asset's pei{ormance of the CGU being tested. The recoverabte amount is
sensitive to the discount rate used for the DCF model as wett as the expected future cash-inftows and the growth rate used for
extrapolation purposes. These estimates are most relevdnt to goodwitt and other intangibtes with indefinite useful lives recognised by
the company.

Taxes: Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses to the extent that it is probabte that taxabte profit wilt be avail,abte
against which the losses can be utitised. Significant management judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred tax
assets that can be recognised, based upon the likety timing and the tevet of future taxabte profits together with future tax ptanning
strategies.

Fair vatue measurement of financial instruments: When the fair values of financial assets and financiat tiabitities recorded in the
balance sheet cannot be measured based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using vatuation techniques
including the DcF model. The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets where possibte, but where this is not
feasible, a degree of judgement is required in estabtishing fair values. Judgements inctude considerations of inputs such as tiquidity
risk, credit risk and votatitity. Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair vatue of financial
instruments.

34 A disctosure with respect to segment reporting is not appticable, since the company operates in the similar economic characteristics

for both the sale of products and for the sate of services and does not have more than one reportabte segment.

Foreign Currenry Earnings And Outgo Rs. Nit (py - Rs. Nil)

There are no reported foreign currency exposures that'have not been hedged by a derivative instrument or otherwise, hence the
disclosure of the same is not made.

CIF vatue of imports Rs. Nit (Py - Rs. Nil).

Leases

Company as lessee

The Company has entered into leases for office premises, that are renewable on a periodic basis and are cancellabte by giving the
notice from one month. There are escautation clause in the agreement and there are no restrictions imposed in ihe tease
arrangements.

The Company has incurred Rs. 2,847.@ thousand (31 March 2021: Rs. Nit) during the year towards minimum tease payment. The
Company is avaiting the excemption available for short-term and low value lease under IND AS 116.

The tease commitment as at 31st March 2022 Rs. 5,00,000 (py - Nit).

35
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SP'AL INFMSTRUCTURE LIAAITED

Notes to flnanclal statements for the year endlng 3lst ilarch 2022

39 EAIPLOYEE BENEFITS

A Deflned contrlbutlon scheme: The company does not have any emptoyee contribution scheme expenses.

B Deflned beneflt plans

Gratulty: In accordance with the Payment of Gratuity Act of 1972, the company contributes to a defined benefit ptan (the "Gratuity ptan") covering
certain categories of employees. The Gratuity Ptan provides a tump wm payment to vested emptoyees at retirement, disabitity or termination of
employment being an amount based on the respective emptoyee's tast drawn satary and the number of years of emptoyment with the Company.

The financial and demographic assumptions on annuat basis used for valuation as at the valuation Date are shown below. The assumptions as at the
Valuation Date are used to determine the Present Vatue of Defined Benefit Obligation at that date:

of flnanclal in Rs

Partlculars As.t
31st llarch 2022

As.t
31st lhrch 2021

Discount rate

Expected rate of increase in compensation [eve] of covered emptoyees

Summqy of Demographlc .ssumptlons:

7.36%

5.00fr

6.81%

5.00%

Partlculars As at
3lst lhrch 2O22

As at
31st llarch 2021

t'iortality Rate (as S of IAU (2@6-08) (/r,tod.) Utt. 
^rtortatity 

Tabte)
Disabitity Rate (as S of above mortatity rate)
Withdrawal Rate
Normal Retirement Age
Adjusted Average Future Service

100.00s

7.16s
5.00%

70 yearc

35.89 Years

100.00%

6.81%

5.(x)S

70 years

27.50 Years

The sensitMty anal)6es above have been determined based.on a method that extrapolates the impact on defined benefit obligation as a result of
reasonable changes in key assumptions ocorring at the end of the reporting period.

In the deflned beneflt in Rs

Partlculars As at
31st lturch 2O22

As at
31st llarch 2021

lDefined benefit obligation at the beginning of the year
lCurrent service cost
Net Interest cost

Sub-total included in profit or toss

Benefits paid

Retum on ptan assets (exctuding amounts included in net interesr
expense)

Actuarial changes arising from changes in financlal assumptions
Actuarial changes arising from changes in demographic assuniptions
Experience adjustments
Subtotal included in OCI

Contributions by employer
Defined benefit obligation at the end of the year

14.71

56.16

1.00

57.16

(1.34)

(1.34)

70.53

513.49

14.71

35.53

50.24
(60.42',)

o.22

(488.82)

(488.61 )

14.71

|n the f.lr value of $sets: (Amount in Rs

Partlculars As rt
31st lilarch 2O22

As at
3lst lturch 2021

Fair Value of Ptan Assets at the beginning
Interest Income

Contributions by employer
Benefit Payments from Plan Assets

Remeasurements . Return on Assets (Exctuding lnterest Income)
Fair Value of Plan Assets at the end

NA

NA

NA

NA

NA

NA

NA

NA

NA

NA

NA

NA

A for for deflned beneflt obll3atlons are as shown below: in Rs 000)

Partlculars As at 31st ltarch. 2022 As at 31st lturch, 2021
Increase Decrease lncrease Decrease

Discount rate by 0.5X
Bgected rate of Increase in compensation tevel of covered emptoyees by
1%

Mthdrawal Rate by 5%

65.34

82.91

63.14

76.30

60.38

68.4

13.76

16.87

11.96

15.73

12,U
I 5.23

6t
i(",w

As.t
3lst lturch 2O22

As it
3{st ltarch 2021

12 months (next annual reporting period)

p.yments are expected contrlbutlons to the deflned beneflt plan In future years:

ffi_a
The average duration of the defined benefit ptan obtigation at the end of the reporting period is 19 years (31 tr{arch 202i: 1 5 years),
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Not s to ffDmhl rtrtomntr td the yar endlnS 3t!t ilrrch 2022

10 RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES:

A Infmtre drcn In xcord.nce wror the requircrmnts of Ind As 2.r on Rerrt d plrty Dr*l6ur6:(l) Holdln8 CohP|ny:
SPilL hfra Llmlted

(fi) Subsldbry:' Attahabad Waste prue$lng Company Ltd.
I'tathura Nagar Waste prce$ing Company Ltd.
Sanmtl IntradewlpeB private Limlted (w.e.f 4th August 2022, titt
this date thls company was Affiate)
D@n Vattey Waste ltanagerent private Ltd,

(lll) Aslrte Comp|nt6:
sP,.tLlL ' A IRUTHA construtlons Prlvat€ Llmited (w,e.f 31st Liarch 2022, titt thls date thls company was ubstdtary)
Dethi Waste ilanagerent Limited

09 fayilrmser|.rl paM:
l'lr. Puktra, Jain

l'lr. Om Pnkash Shama
l,{r. Deepak Sethi (up to 1 oth February 2021 )
lrr. Rajesh Kan&l

(v) cqnp.nl6 In *lilch key r&ilgerhl p.Fnnd q rclafiws of Kr,rp hrn 3linlllrcds InflFmc:
ADD Reatty Llmlted
ADD Industrlat Park (Tamtt Nadul Ltd.
Intematlmat Constnrtions Limited
ADD Enerry lrlanagemnt Co Pvt Llmited
Subhash Kablnl Porer CorDoration Limlted
,iadural llrnlclpat Waste pcesslng Company A^. Ltd,

SPIIL INFRASTRUCTURE UIIITED
tlotos to ltmmhl 3t!t mnts 6 rt llrt lhrch 2022

B A8fru$te tnMtbns wlth rchted plrtles dklmre:

GST

" Outstnadlng batarce arc exctuslw of prwision tor impalrerent.

of trun*tlom wlth rehted Frtler6f Ilons wlth related partles are made on tem equivatent to thos that prevait in arm's tength tranections. outstandtng balarces at
Tj"" f .:",h..I*t: hN been no guarantees provlded or receiEd ftr any related party recitvabtes or parabtes. This as$mnt ts un

fre and

E
P,';

Wst Pc6ln8CoA.tLtd

of the retated partyhnflt{e market h which the retated party openies.
enmining the



SPA{L INFMSTRUCTURE LIMITED

Not6 to ffnsnchl statemenB for the year endlng 3 1 st tt*lrch ZO2z

41 Falrvalues
The carrylng value and falr vatue of financlal instruments by category:

Assets and llablllfies carrled at rmortls€d cost

Falr value hlerarchy

Level 1: Quoted prlces In acilve markets for ldenticat assets or uabltiHes.
Level 2: slgnlflcant observable Inputs other than quoted prlces Included In level 1 that are observabte for the asset or llabitity,
elther dlrectty (1.e. as prices) or Indirectty (1,e. derived from prlces).
Level 3: slgnlflcant unobservable lnputs for the assets or tlabitltles that are not based on observable market data (unobservable
Inputs).

The management assessed that cash and cash equivalents, trade receivabtes, trade payables, and other current tiablu$es
approximate thelr carrying amounts targely due to the short-term maturlfies of these Instruments.

The falr ratues of the companles interest'bearing borrorvings and loans are determlned by using DcF method uslng discountrate that reftects the lsejer's borrowlng rate as at the end of the reporting perlod. The own rionperformance rlsk as at 31March 2022 was assessed to be inslgnificant.

The falr values of the unquoted equlty shares have been estimated using a DcF modet. The valuaHon requlres management to
make certaln assumptlons about the modet Inputs, Inctudlng forecast cash ftou6, dlscount rate, credlt rlsk and votafiUty. Theprobabllltles of the varlous estlmates wlthin the range can be reasonably assessed and are used In management,s esgmate offalr value for these unquoted equity investments.

AsseB and llabllltles carrred at far varues through other comprehensrve Income

42

Partlculars

RS

CarrylngValue I F.lrvttue
As at

31st ilarch 2022
As rt

31st ilarch 2021
As at

3lst ri.rch 2022
As rt

31st ,',larch 2O2l
Flnanchl a3set3

Investments

Other Bank Balances

Other non.current flnanclal Assets

Trade Recelvabtes

Cash and cash equivalents
Loans

1,56,472.30

15.00

84,438.96

2,986.53

29,4f,8.54

1,55,47.30
14,125.95

15.00

2,099.93
'1,400.95

29,518,11

1,56,472.30

15.00

84,438.96

2,986.53

29,48,8.54

1,55,487.30

14,125.95

15.00

2,099,93

1,4{n.95
29,518.11

2,73,1O1.33 2,02,617.24 2,73,1O7.33 2,02,617.21

Flnanclal llabllltle3
Eorrowlngs

Trade Payabtes

Other current flnanciat tiabltitv

1,42,052.33

18,895.07

43.18

1,06,618.1 5

2,931.17

43.17

1,42,052,33

18,895.07

43.18

1,06,618.15

2,931.17
43.17

1,60,990.58 1,09,592.49 1,60,990.58 1.09.592.49

Partlculars
Carrylng Valu€

(Amount ln Rs

Falr Value
As at

3lst rturch 2022
As at

3lst rrbrch 2021
As at

3lst llarch 2022
As at

313t il.rch 2021

Flnanclal rss€ts
Investments

Less Prdvlsfon for lmDairment
1,.18,0E1.14

(1,48,081.14)
1,48,081,14

(1,4E,081.14
1,4,0E1.14

(1,.r8,081.14)
1,48,0E1.14

(1,.18,081.14)

Partlculars
Carrylnt Value Falr Valu€

As at
3lst rilarch 2022

As at
31st lLrch 2021

As rt
3lst lturch 2022

As.t
3lst r{.rch 2021

Flnanclal assets

Investments

-ess Provlslon for lmpalrment
10,615.82

-68,257.86
10,615.82

.10,61 5,82

10,615.82
-68,257.86

10,615.82
-10,615.82

I Otal -57,642.04 -57,612.04

Prrtlculars
Falr value
hlerrrchy

(Leve0

(Amount In Rs

Falr value

A3 at 31 l{.rch
2022

As at 31 ,turch
2021A rrnanqatASt€ts

a) ,ib.sur€d at amortlsed co6t
Investments(Unquoted)

Loans

Securlty deposlt recelvable
Trade Recelvables

Cash And Bank Batances

4@qelKostaff
.pt'-fAftratlqi'GSfrp Recetvabte

Er"*'
s/
/of toan obrigatton

but not due

2

2

1

1

1

1

2

2

1

1

I

1,56,472

15

84,439

7,987

111

29,371

1,Q,595.87
1E,E95.07

1,456.47

43.18

1,55,47
14,126

15

2,100

1,41
141

29,377

1,05,161.69

2,931.17
1,4i6.47

43,17

Levet 1, Z Level 3 during the year ended 31 ,Uarch ,{arch 202



5PITL INFMSTRUCTURE LTIIITED
Notes to tlnlncbl statements for the yerr endlng ! lst ilrrch 2022

42 Fln.nclrl rkk m.nagement objocflves and pollcles
The company's Prlnclpal flnanclal llabltlties, other than deri\ati\€s, comprise loans and borrowings, trade and other payables, and flnanclat guarantee
contnrcts' The maln Purpose of these flnanclat tlabltltles ls to flnance the companys operatlons and to prcvlde guarantee6 to support 11, operagons. The
cotnpanys Princlpal flnanclal assets inctude toans, trade and other recelvables, and cash and cash equhalents that derlr€ dlrectly from lts operatio,rs.

The comPany ls exposed to market rlsk, credlt ri* and tiquldity rlsk. The company's senlor management o\€rse6 the management of these rlsks. Thecompany's senlor management 13 supPorted by a tlnanclal rlsk committee that advises on flnanclat risks and the approprtate flnanclal rlsk govemanceframework for the comParry' The financlat rlsk commlttee provldes assurance to the company,s senlor managemeflt that the cornpalry,s financlat riskactivltle are gotrcmed by aPproPrlate Potlcies and prcedures and that financlat rl*s are identilled, measurcd and man'aged in accordance wlth thecomparry's poucles and risk objectlves.

il.rkct rlsk

'i'tartet 
risk ls the rlsk that the falr value of future cash ftows of a financial Instrument will flrJctuate because of changes In na*et prtces. t{arket rlsk

cornprlses three t)'pes of rlsk Inter6t rate rfsk, currency rlsk and other prlce rl*, such as equlty prtce rlsk and coanmodity rlsk, Flnanclat Instnments
affected by market rlsk Include toans and borrowlngs, deposits, Fvrocl inr/estments and derhatfi/€ flnanctal Instruments.

Interest rute rlsk
Interett rate rlsk ls the rlsk that the fair \atue or future cash flovn of a financlal Instrument wltt fluctuate b€cause of changs In ma*et Interest rates.
The company's e)(po6ure to the rlsk of chang6 In market Interest ntes relats prlmarily to the company,s long_term debt obugatlms wlth floating
interBt rates' The cornpany manages lts Interest rate rlsk by having a batanced portfotio of fixed and \arlabte rate toans and borrowlngs.

Cr€dlt rlsk
credlt rlsk ls the rlsk that counteq)arty will not meet lts obtlgatlons under a financial Instrument or ct|srcmer contract, teadlng to a financial toss. ThecomPany ls sQosed to credit rlsk frotn lts oPeratlng actlvltles iprlmarlty trade recei\ables) and from lts flnanclng actlvlties, Inctudlng depoglts wlth banksand flnanclal Ins$tutlons and other flnanclal lnstruments.

Llquldlty rbk
The Company monltors lts rlsk of a shortage of funds uslng a uquidity ptannlng toot.

The table below summarlseg the maturlty Proflle of the cornpany's flnanclal llablll0es based on contractuat undlscounted payments:

As at 31st r'brch 2022 On Demand Less than 3
mmths

Less than 3
months to 12

mmfh.

liore than I
year

tlnRS

Totrl

ffiowngs
frade Palrable

otier current finandat llablllty

1,6), 136.21

1S,395.;7
-1,171.()0

1,456,4

|,214.18

31,459.63 1,42,052.33

18,895.07

concentratlons arlse when a number of cqnterpartlB are engaged In simltar busineis actlvlti$, or actlvlties In the same geographlcal reglon, or ha\re
economic features that would cause thelr abl[ty to meet contractuat obtlgatlons to be slmllarty affected by changes In economlc, pougcat or other
condltlons' concentratlons Indlcate the relatlve sensltlvlty of the company's performance to developments affectlng a parucuur tnoustry. 

: '' -

In order to awld exc6sl\€ concefltratlons of rlsk, the company's pollcles and procedures Include spectfic guldellnes to focus on the malntenance of a
dlversfled portfollo. ldentlfled concentratlons of credlt rlsks are controued and managed accordlngly. !€lecHve hedglng ls used wlthln the Group to

. manage rlsk concentrafions at both the retatlonshlp and Industry lelrels.

43 Crpltrl manlgem.nt
For the putPose of the comPalry's caPltal management, capltat Includes lssued. equlty capltat and au other equlty reservB attrlbutabae to the equlty
hotders of tie Parent' The prlmary objectl\re of the company's capital management ls to maxlmlse the shareholder ntue. The company managG tts
capltal structure and mak6 a-djtJstments h tlght of changes In economlc conditions and the requlrements of the flnanclal covenants. To malntaln or
adjust the capltal structure, the Gcompany may adJust the dlvldend payment to sharehotdeB, retum capital to shareholders or lssue new shar6, Tie
company monltors caPltal uslng a gearlng ratio, whlch ls net debt dlvlded by totat capltat ptus net debt, The company Inctudes wlthln net debt, Inter6t
bearlng loans and borowings, trade and other payabl6, less cash and cash equi\iatents.

Pfftlculars As !t
3lst illrch 2022

(amount |n Rs'0q
As !t

Slst ltrrch 2o2l
EOnOfingS

frade payabtes

)ther.cunent flnanclal uabi[ty
]ther cunent tlabluty
.6s: cash and calh equhralents

1,4,052.33
18,895.07

43.18
5,530.10

(2,986.53)

1,06,618.1 5

2,931,17

43.17

1,W.17
o,,r00.95)

1.63.5311.15 1,O9,251.71

Equlty

Capltat Reserves

iecurlty premlum

:lthef egulty

7,133.U
65.(r

5,88,762.6
11-67-5,l.7-1Ar

7,$3.A
65.06

5,8,76?.6
(4.05.569^301

| @r Eqcrqy 1,28,718.61 1.90.6ti.46
55.96' 36.4t

I.:f:,:^"*]T-t!]1Ag1 "o.l*,t 
r", the co,npany,s capttat manasement, amonsst other titoss, atms to ensure

**ili:l* j:::::y:13113f-:11-T31lq:,hat define caprtar 
"^i",,*r.EJ*,*c.T[.o". In meetns

call loans and borrowlngs.
poticles or process$ for managing capltat durlng tle years eflded 31 ftarch 2O2Z

permlt the

As at tlst llarch 202i

o

6i J9
No
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